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In our report we have disclosed forward-looking information so that investors can comprehend the

Company’s prospects and make informed investment decisions. This annual report and other written and

oral statements that we make periodically contain such forward-looking statements that set out

anticipated results based on the Management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried, wherever possible,

to qualify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’,

‘plans’, ‘believes’, and words and terms of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future

operating or financial performance.

We do not guarantee that any forward-looking statement will be realised, although we believe we have

been diligent and prudent in our plans and assumptions. The achievement of future results is subject to

risks, uncertainties and validity of inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or

uncertainties materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, our actual results could vary

materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Investors should bear this in mind as they

consider forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking

statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.  
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Maithan Alloys. 

Not a usual ferro alloys
manufacturer. 

Operates in a manganese alloys
space that is niche and value-added. 

Where predictability > cyclicality.



2 Annual Report 2009-10

Milestones 1997
Commenced commercial
production with 10 MVA

Added 7.5 MVA 

2000

Maithan Alloys.
Beyond commodity.
Where we value research,
innovation, value-addition,
integration, profitability
and EVA.

Rich 13-year experience in the manufacture and marketing of manganese alloys 

Manganese alloy manufacturing capacity of 93 MVA at the Group level; 64 MVA

capacity within the Company

Manufacturing plants located in Kalyaneshwari near Asansol (49 MVA) and

Meghalaya (15 MVA)

Headquartered at Kalyaneshwari near Asansol, West Bengal 

Reported an economic value-added of Rs. 23.2 cr for 2009-10 

Traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and listed on Kolkata Stock Exchange 
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Chairman’s overview

Even as we are
relieved about
reporting a rebound,
we have already
embarked on
strengthening our
competitiveness.
By more than doubling
our production
capacity.
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The global slowdown in 2008-09 had an adverse effect on the

global ferro alloy industry with manufacturers suffering

inventory losses, forex losses and considerable business losses. 

We were faced with an alternative: complain about these

realities and wait for things to get better. On the contrary, we

set about rowing harder. The result was a robust post-tax

bottomline of Rs. 30.24 cr for 2009-10 (Rs. 0.14 cr in 2008-

09), surprising our shareowners pleasantly with the scale and

speed of our turnaround. 

Our performance of the last two quarters of the financial year

indicate that 2010-11 will be even better. 

Industry churn
There were two reasons that contributed to this turnaround. 

One, the fundamental robustness of the sub-sector of

manganese alloys, and two, the relative advantage of our

Company within our competitive industry space. 

The India advantage
While most economies the world over floundered through the

economic slowdown, India capitalised on this industry churn

on the back of several realities: abundant manganese ore

deposits, rich know-how (metallurgical and entrepreneurial),

large and growing steel market that emerged quicker from

the slowdown, a favourable geographic positioning that

enabled the Indian alloy industry to cater to the growing

needs of other Asian countries as well as a growing

manufacturing scale that translated into operational

economies. 

The result was a rise in India’s manganese alloys export to

demanding markets, re-establishing the country’s position as

a quality-driven, long-term and dependable material provider.

Maithan’s competitive positioning
Maithan Alloys recognised emerging opportunities – a

growing manganese alloys market outside Europe, growing

economies like China consuming more manganese alloys, and

a widening Indian market owing to enhanced steel

production. 

Anticipating these trends, Maithan Alloys invested its sizeable

surplus in strengthening its competitive position and

emerging as one of the world’s largest manganese alloys

players. 

The Company reduced costs through captive power

generation, graduated towards value-added grades and also

embarked on SEZ-centric capacity addition (to be

commissioned by 2011) in a subsidiary company.  

Maithan anticipates that with an increasing power deficit, the

country will soon be compelled to restrict the export of

energy-intensive materials; its 72-MVA plant in the

Visakhapatanam SEZ (in a subsidiary company) will insulate it

from the downside of this anticipated action and enable it to

widen its global user base. 

Shareholder value
In 2009-10, Maithan Alloys enriched its product mix, created

new export markets and commenced commercial production

at its Meghalaya plant.

We are optimistic that these initiatives will strengthen our

competitive edge, enhance revenues and profit, and enriche

value in the hands of our shareholders.

B.K. Agarwalla

Chairman



On our performance in 2009-10.
Our performance in 2009-10 was clearly better than that in
the previous year despite a low asset utilisation following a
lower power feed from Damodar Valley Corporation (DVC)
and extensive provisions that we made on certain DVC claims
(though not expended) that we are confident of recovering. 

I must caution shareholders that given the extent of the
collapse in 2008-09, anything achieved in the following year
will appear as a dramatic improvement. So I would request
shareholders to appraise our performance from the
perspective of the four years leading to 2009-10 for a better
understanding of our competitive position. 

We reported a bottomline of Rs. 11.96 cr in 2006-07,
Rs. 39.18 cr in 2007-08, Rs. 0.14 cr in 2008-09 and Rs. 30.24
cr in 2009-10. If one smoothens out the exceptional
improvement in the first half of 2008-09 when we reported a
profit after tax of Rs. 54.18 cr and an exceptional decline in
the second half when we reported a deficit of Rs. 54.04 cr,
then one will arrive at a fair understanding of the health of
our business in 2009-10. And based on this understanding,
one will be prompted to conclude that we reported a credible
performance. 

On the deficit in 2008-09.
Although this does not fall into the purview of our
performance review for 2009-10, it would be pertinent to
explain the large one-time loss in the third quarter of 2008-09
to assure shareholders about the profitability of non-
recurrence. The Company reported a surplus of
Rs. 54.18 cr in the first half of 2008-09, marked by increasing
realisations of our end products on the one hand and an
increasing dearth of raw materials on the other. At that point
we could have done two things – kept a lean raw material
inventory while staying in a state of perpetual insecurity or
created an adequate raw material buffer to protect our

customer delivery schedules. As a responsible organisation we
opted for the latter; when the cost of raw materials crashed,
we took a rare one-time inventory loss (and accompanying
forex loss) on our books, which was the general industry
standard. On the positive side, we continued to meet our
delivery schedules and protected our reputation as
dependable long-standing partners even in volatile markets.
Having said this, it would be important to add that even
during the challenging days of the slowdown, after removing
the impact of the inventory and forex losses, we remained
operationally profitable.

On the perceived cyclicality of the
business. 
A number of shareholders have questioned us on our
industry’s cyclicality. There are three points to consider here
when it comes to appraising a company like ours. 

First, that we operate in a cyclical environment where the
demand for our products is influenced by the health of the
steel industry. 

Second, that over the last few years, there has been a shift in
our consumer pockets. From an industry that was largely
dependent on the western markets, we now see an Asian
emergence. Not only is there a shift in global consumption
patterns, but also a stronger growth emerging from Asia and
developing economies, which we can competitively address.  

There is a third cycle at play as well. Over the last couple of
years, we made proactive changes in our business model to
enhance our counter-cyclicality and remain relatively insulated
from sharp industry swings. 

The vigour with which we reported our corporate rebound is
indicative of our ability to manage each of these cycles.

On the Company’s response to global
shifts. 
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“We rebounded with
vigour in 2009-10 because
we continued to look
beyond commodity.”

First person

Managing Director S.C. Agarwalla dwells on the highlights of 2009-10



Nearly 50% of Maithan’s exports were made to western
countries before the slowdown. The moment it became
evident that the shrinking of the western markets was not just
a result of the slowdown but part of a longer-term
geographic restructuring, we sought alternative markets. The
urgency with which the Company widened its geographic
presence is indicative of its competitiveness; it addressed the
growing needs of customers in Asia and the result is that 68%
of our exports in 2009-10 were accounted by Asia and only
32% by the western markets. 

On the Company’s competitive edge.
The Company capitalised effectively on the buoyant industry
environment prior to the slowdown, adjusted with speed to
address different markets during the slowdown and
rebounded with vigour as soon as markets improved. All these
were the result of the quality of our product mix, an argument
reflected below: 

The first point is that we are not a commodity manganese
alloy manufacturer; we are a niche player with a value-added
product range. 

The second point is that we don’t market products to
generic users; we market products to large, quality-respecting
and relationship-respecting companies. 

The third point is that we don’t manufacture and market;
we market, customise and manufacture resulting in a sensitive
understanding of the customer’s need, product and business. 

The fourth point is that we don’t just have a few products to
market; we possess a range of niche products that address a
variety of customer requirements. 

On business-strengthening initiatives in
2009-10.
Until 2008-09, we purchased all our power requirements
either from the State Electricity Board or the Damodar Valley
Corporation. At the beginning of 2009-10, we commissioned
a 15 MW captive thermal power plant in Meghalaya,
accounting for 25% of our needs. This Rs. 51-cr power facility
was funded through accruals and debt. The unit reported a
plant load factor in excess of 90%. This ensured continuous
power supply to our Meghalaya unit, which otherwise would
have suffered from an acute shortage of grid power. 

The proportion of value-added products in our portfolio
increased further in 2009-10. These products were marketed
to large, quality-respecting customers, keen to work with
long-term partners, indicating revenue sustainability for us.

On taking the Company ahead.
Through our working in 2009-10, we witnessed the

emergence of several market realities. 

One, there is a large market for a niche player like us. 

Two, the value-added segment catering to the needs of
quality-respecting customers is relatively insulated from
demand and price swings. 

The Company recognised the urgency of responding promptly
to these realities. Consequently, it floated a subsidiary and
embarked on commissioning a Rs. 250-cr 72-MVA plant in
Visakhapatanam, expected to begin operations from the
second half of 2011-12.

On how the proposed Visakhapatanam
plant will strengthen the business model.
The commissioning of the Visakhapatanam plant (in our
subsidiary company) will strengthen our business model for
several reasons: 

The plant will focus on export opportunities. 

The plant will be located in a Special Economic Zone with
accompanying tax and duty benefits.

The plant will be proximate to manganese ore pockets,
reducing transportation costs. 

The plant will be located less than 20 km from the port,
facilitating the easy handling of export and import cargo. 

The plant enjoys power assurance from the Andhra Pradesh
government; Andhra Pradesh will enjoy an increase in power
availability following the commissioning of various port-based
thermal power plants and the commercialisation of gas
reserves from the KG Basin. 

On how the Visakhapatanam plant will
enhance shareholder value.
The Rs. 250-cr plant will be funded through debt and
accruals, without diluting our equity. The plant will be
commissioned as a subsidiary to capitalise on tax incentives,
resulting in an efficient fiscal structure. The plant is likely to
generate revenues in excess of Rs. 700 cr at full capacity. 

On prospects for 2010-11.
The current year promises to be better than 2009-10 for a
number of reasons: realisations are higher, Asian demand is
robust and we will not need to provide for DVC claims that
we did in 2009-10 (but did not expend). A combination of
these factors will strengthen our topline and bottomline in
2010-11.

7Maithan Alloys Limited
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revenue growth in the
four years leading to
2009-10 

The conventional understanding of
the manganese alloys sector is that it
is cyclical. Maithan Alloys is
enhancing a sense of revenues and
earnings predictability.

220%

EBIDTA margin,
2009-10 

The conventional understanding of
the manganese alloys sector is that it
is commodity. Maithan Alloys is
addressing niche pockets requiring
value-added products. 

14.12%
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Return on employed
capital (average),
2009-10 

The conventional understanding of the
manganese alloys sector is that every
transaction is price-driven. Maithan
Alloys is proving that longstanding
relationships pay. 

24.97%

revenues from exports,
2009-10 

The conventional understanding of
the manganese alloys sector is that
it is generic. Maithan Alloys is
demonstrating that customisation
works.  

37%
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Success
drivers

Input management 
IN THE BUSINESS OF MANGANESE ALLOYS MANUFACTURE

AND MARKETING, IT IS IMPERATIVE TO SECURE ONESELF

THROUGH ADEQUATE, CONSISTENT AND COST-EFFECTIVE

INPUT SUPPLY.

Besides, with input costs accounting for 58% of the total

production cost, it is necessary to procure intelligently, cap

input costs and protect viability.

At Maithan, we secured our production with a sustainable

supply of raw material quantity that enabled us to maximise

our production, leading to scale economies. Besides, we

invested in the efficient conversion of this raw material,

reinforcing our viability.

Sourcing
The Company’s operations consume manganese ore. The

Company increased the consumption of imported raw

material from 24% of its total needs in 2007-08 to 49% in

2009-10 as domestic availability of high-grade manganese ore

declined. The Company imported a majority of its ore needs

(nearly 50%) from BHP Billiton, the dependable global giant,

from whom the Company has been sourcing for seven years.

Much of the domestically-sourced ore was procured from

Sandur Manganese & Iron Ores Ltd (SMIOL), one of India’s

leading high-grade manganese ore producers. 

Quality 
The Company’s decision to source raw material from leading

players like BHP Billiton and SMIOL ensured high input quality.

Moreover, all raw material consignments were checked

internally in laboratories and issued a quality certificate by a

third party appointed by the Company. 

Generally, manganese ores are classified into three grades

according to the manganese content of the ore; high-grade

contains 44-48% Mn, medium grade 35-44% and low grade

25-35%. In India, the reserves of high-grade manganese ore

are limited and a large quantity of high grade ore is imported.

High-grade ores are advantageous compared with low-grade

ores as they generate lower slag and consume less power. 

Costs
Ore prices peaked in 2008-09 as a rise in steel demand

correspondingly catalysed manganese alloy and manganese

ore demand. Since the mining industry was operating at a

high utilisation, an immediate production increase was

difficult, which resulted in higher ore prices and in, turn,

higher finished product (manganese alloy) realisations. 

This uptrend continued till the second quarter of 2008-09

when the global slowdown affected steel demand.

Manganese alloy realisations declined followed by a decline in

ore prices. The Company maintained adequate raw material

inventory and booked ore at higher prices. Consequently, as

ore prices declined from Rs. 40,000 a ton to Rs. 21,500 a ton

in just three months leading to December 2008, the Company

incurred inventory losses. In 2009-10, ore prices stabilised.

1



Power
The Company enjoys a long-term relationship with Damodar

Valley Corporation for the supply of power. The Company’s

Kalyaneshwari plant receives power from a DVC substation

barely 1 km away. The strength of the relationship is reflected

in the following realities: 

The power supplied by DVC was marked by consistent

voltage stability. 

DVC derives its power from dual sources; hydel and thermal,

resulting in a lower average cost of power generation. 

DVC connected Maithan with a dedicated feeder for power

supply accompanied by a vast network of transmission lines

interconnecting tie lines with an adjoining system and power

grid leading to stable, reliable and quality power.

The 15 MVA Meghalaya unit sourced power from a captive

thermal power plant that was commissioned in April, 2009.

The power plant sourced coal from proximate local mines. 

Average consumption per ton was 4,534 units for 2009-10

compared with 3,837 units per ton in 2008-09. It must be

noted that value-added products consume a larger quantity of

power but recover the additional cost through higher

realisations.

11Maithan Alloys Limited

Manufacturing 2
IN THE COMPLEX BUSINESS OF MANGANESE ALLOYS

MANUFACTURE, IT IS IMPERATIVE TO PRODUCE NICHE

MATERIAL EFFICIENTLY – USING OPTIMAL RESOURCES

WITHOUT COMPROMISING QUALITY – ON THE ONE HAND

AND ENHANCING PRODUCTION ON THE OTHER.

The Company manufactures specialised niche products,

increasing its value-added product basket over the years.

Expansion
The Company continuously endeavours to increase its

production capacity to meet the ever growing needs of its

existing customers as well as tap unexplored markets.

Consequently the Company possesses a combined capacity of

64 MVA (Kalyaneshwari 49 MVA and Meghalaya 15 MVA)

and is one of the country’s leading manganese alloy

producers. 

The Company’s Meghalaya unit enjoys attractive government

incentives in terms of direct and indirect tax, capital subsidy

and transport subsidy. The 15 MVA unit is supported by a

15 MW captive power plant.

The Company embarked on additional capacity creation

through a 72 MVA plant in Visakhapatanam under its

subsidiary company. When commissioned, this plant will

enhance the Group’s overall capacity to 165 MVA, making the

Group one of the fastest growing manganese alloy producers

in the world. 

Once operational, the Visakhapatnam plant will cater

exclusively to global demand; the Meghalaya plant will cater

to the domestic market while the Kalyaneshwari plant will

focus on value-added products for the domestic and export

market.

Growing capacity

1997 2008-09 2009-10

Capacity 10 MVA 49 MVA 64 MVA

Review
The Kalyaneshwari unit produced 58,275 MT in 2009-10

compared with 69,593 MT in 2008-09; the Meghalaya unit

produced 18,176 MT in 2009-10, its first year of operation.

The decline in output from the Kalyaneshwari plant (Asansol)

was owing to lower power feed from the Damodar Valley

Corporation, the Company’s principal power supplier for 13

years. 

Production (in MT)

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10

Kalyaneshwari unit – 49 MVA 65185 69,593 58,275 

Meghalaya unit – 15 MVA – – 18,176

Total 65185 69,593 76,451
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Quality 3
IN THE DEMANDING BUSINESS OF NICHE MANGANESE

ALLOYS MANUFACTURE, IT IS NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN A

CONSISTENT PROCESS DISCIPLINE LEADING TO HIGH

PRODUCT QUALITY.

Maithan takes pride in its product quality. This is best

showcased by the Company’s demanding clientele comprising

steel giants like SAIL and Jindals in India and reputed buyers in

demanding markets like Japan. 

The Company’s product quality is derived from stringent

process controls and the use of quality raw material. The

Company procures supplies from respectable leading

manganese ore producing companies like SMIOL in India and

BHP Billiton internationally. A third party conducts quality

checks on the incoming raw material quality. The Company’s

products are certified in line with ISO 9001, resulting in

process consistency.

Over the years, the Company invested in laboratories

equipped with the latest technologies. The equipment

comprises XRF to reduce human intervention and errors. 

Product development4
IN THE QUALITY-CENTRIC WORLD OF MANGANESE ALLOYS

MANUFACTURE, IT IS IMPERATIVE TO DEVELOP PRODUCTS

REVOLVING AROUND DIVERSE CUSTOMER NEEDS, TAKING

THE LATTER’S BUSINESS AHEAD. 

The addition of manganese alloy to steel strengthens and

hardens it. For instance, researchers found traces of

manganese in Germany’s iron ore, which translated into

superior steel quality. Since then, manganese has been

recognised as critical to steel superiority.  

The Company produces ferro manganese and silico

manganese. These products are further graded on the basis of

the presence of manganese, silicon, carbon, phosphorous and

sulphur. There is a minimum specification for manganese and

silicon (desired elements) and the maximum specification for

undesired elements like carbon, phosphorus, sulphur and

others. Value-addition is achieved by increasing the quantity

of desired elements and reducing the presence of undesired

constituents. 

Maithan provides a wide product basket. During the year

under review, the Company produced value-added products

with niche applications, reducing its exposure to the volatile

end of the market. Besides, the niche output raised entry

barriers, restricting competition.
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Marketing 5
IN THE GLOBALLY DISPERSED MARKET OF MANGANESE

ALLOYS, IT IS NECESSARY TO FIND CUSTOMERS,

UNDERSTAND THEIR NEEDS, CUSTOMISE PRODUCTS AND

DELIVER ON SCHEDULE. 

Maithan established its reputation around superior service,

which comprises meeting product specifications, maintaining

the highest quality standards and ensuring timely delivery. 

Customer service
The Company’s customers primarily comprise traders and steel

manufacturers. As most of the customers are repeat, prudent

servicing is critical. 

The Company assumes the role of a partner, working closely

on product customisation that takes the business of its

customers ahead. This resulted in knowledge-sharing and a

deeper market understanding. 

The Company also provides superior product quality and

timely delivery. The result of this commitment was that even

in volatile markets, when the Company suffered inventory

losses, supplies to customers remained unaffected. Maithan

produces in line with shipment schedules leading to timely

material delivery. 

Geographic reach
Prior to the slowdown, the Company focused on

opportunities in the western markets. Once it became evident

that the recovery in western markets would take longer, the

Company shifted its attention to Asia. The share of revenues

generated from the latter increased from 50% prior to the

shift from western markets to nearly 68% in 2009-10. The

speed with which the Company altered its geographic mix

indicates its product excellence, customer focus and pricing

competitiveness. 

Shift from western markets to Asia
(% of export sales)

2008-09 2009-10

Asia 50 68

Western markets 50 32

The Company continued to cater to major integrated steel

companies like SAIL, JSW, JSPL, JSL and others, the association

with SAIL and JSL being more than 10 years. 

Domestic and exports sales (%)

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10

Domestic 74.74 54.05 37.73 63.31

Exports 25.26 45.95 62.27 36.69



Indian economic overview
The Indian economy recovered from the global slowdown of
2008 and registered 7.4% GDP growth in 2009-10 (Source:
CSO). This in turn strengthened steel demand and production.
Crude steel production was 62.84 MT in 2009, an increase of
14.05% as compared with the previous year (Source: World
Steel). This in turn, spurred the demand for raw materials like
ferro alloys.

The steel industry
Global: Global steel production was 1,204 MT in 2009, a
7.52% decline over 2008 (Source: Worldsteel). However,
China, India and the Middle East registered positive growth in
steel production in 2009. China alone produced 566.82 MT of
steel, 46.6% of world’s total crude steel in 2009 (Source: IISI);
BRIC countries produced 58.3% of the total world steel
production in 2009 (49.6% in 2008). Crude steel production
as a proportion of the global output declined in Brazil to 2.2%
in 2009 from 2.5% in 2008, from 5.2% in 2008 in Russia to
4.9% in 2009, while in India it rose from 4.2% in 2008 to
4.6% in 2009 and in China from 37.7% in 2008 to 46.6% in
2009.

2008

2009

(Source – IISI)

Asia: Growth in infrastructure creation catalysed Asian steel
consumption, which now accounts for more than half the
world’s crude steel consumption. Asia’s share of world steel
production increased from 57% in 2008 to 65% in 2009,
producing 782 MT of crude steel (Source: Worldsteel). This
was possible due to government stimulus packages and
recovery in emerging Asian economies. In the long run, the
construction sector is expected to strengthen significantly,
especially in China, South Asia and the Middle East, catalysing
steel demand further. In 2009-10, only South Asia, the Middle
East and China witnessed steel production growth while other
global economies reported a decline – 33.9% in North
America, 22.8% in Europe, 20.1% in South America, 11% in
Africa and 26.3% in Japan (Source: SEAISI). China produced
566.8 MT of steel in 2009 – a record annual crude steel
production for any single country.

India: The Indian iron and steel industry contributes around
2% of the gross domestic product of the country. Between
April-December 2009 India produced 45.77 MT of steel, a
2.7% growth compared with the same period in the previous
year, making it the world’s fifth largest steel producer. The
increase in production was supported by capacity expansion,
mainly in private sector plants and higher utilisation (Source:
Economic Survey, 2009). Steel consumption in sectors like
manufacturing, consumer durables, construction and
agriculture increased to 40.997 MT in 2009-10 (Source:
Ministry of Steel). Crude steel capacity by 2011-12 is expected
to be nearly 124 MT as 222 MoUs have been signed with
various states for planned capacity of around 276 MT by
2020. India’s per capita steel consumption is a mere 47 kg,
compared to the world average of 190 kg, indicating a huge
growth potential (Source: Ministry of Steel).

Ferro alloys
Ferro alloys are used as alloying elements in steel
manufacture. They are essential additives in steel making,
which provide desired properties to the end product. These
alloys enhance strength, durability, anti-corrosion and anti-
stain properties. Ferro alloys constitute less than one percent
of the total raw materials required for steel production. Its
price is positively correlated with steel demand. 
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Following erratic Chinese supply, India stepped up ferro alloys
exports. China exported around 9,24,909 tons of ferro-alloy in
2009, a 70% decline compared with the preceding year. The
decline can be attributed to the Chinese central government’s
decision to impose a 20% export duty on ferro alloys.
Consequently, a large number of ferro alloy plants were
forced to suspend production; exports of many products
dropped sharply and China became a net ferro alloys importer
(Source: Texreport).

Due to increased steel production, the demand for
manganese ore and ferro alloys increased. However, with steel
production projected to increase, a large gap between
manganese alloys availability and requirement is foreseen. The
requirement of ferro alloys to cater to the need of projected
steel production will be 1.90 million tons by 2020 whereas
prevailing ferro alloy production in India is 0.75 million tons.
(Source: Indian Technomac Co. Ltd.).

Manganese alloys
Manganese improves steel quality and acts as a deoxidiser.
The addition of manganese to steel makes the final product
hard and resistant to corrosion and mechanical shock.
Manganese improves steel strength, while marginally
impairing elasticity. A higher content of manganese in the
presence of carbon substantially increases wear resistance.
With up to 3% of manganese, the tensile strength of steels
increases by about 10 kg/mm2 for every added percentage of
manganese (Source: Acmealloys).

In India, the iron and steel industry is the biggest manganese
alloy user, accounting for 90-95% of domestic consumption.

Global manganese alloy production declined around 17% in
2009 to 11.6 MT owing to the global recession. Production of
high-carbon ferro-manganese (HC FeMn) was 3.8 MT, a
decline of 20%; refined ferro-manganese production
(RefFeMn) declined 38% to 0.69 MT; silico manganese (SiMn)
production at 7 MT reflected a decline of 11%. Silico
manganese fared better than the other two types of
manganese alloys because of its heavy consumption in long
steel products used in infrastructure and construction projects.
Decline in production varied for each alloy due to the types of
steels these were used in.

Global manganese alloy production

(Source: IMNL)

The global unit consumption of manganese ferro-alloys varied
due to different steel production processes, the quality of raw
materials used and types of steel products produced. The
overall average, however, continued to be around 10 kg of
manganese per MT of steel produced in 2009. Post recession,
steel demand is correcting and is expected to correspondingly
increase manganese alloys consumption (Source: IMnI,
Annual Review 2009).

Manganese-intensive steel accounts for 13% of global steel
production and this proportion is expected to increase. Of the
total steel produced, multi-purpose low-carbon steels contain
only 0.15% to 0.8% manganese compared with high-strength
steel, which contains over 1% manganese with yield strength
of over 500 MPa. Some grades containing 1-1.5% manganese
(as well as chromium or boron) are popular in the automobile
industry. Stainless steel represents less than 2% of total world
steel production (26-28 MT) and contains about 1%
manganese. In special manganese-stainless steels like the
series 200 variety, manganese content ranges between 4 and
16% (Source: Stainless-steel-world). High manganese steels,
with 13% or more manganese content, like Hadfield steel are
tough and wear-resistant; they are used in gyratory crushers,
jaw-crusher plates, railway points and crossover components
and teeth for earth-moving equipment, among others. High
manganese (10-12%) non-magnetic steels are used in retainer
rings for turbo alternators and collars on oil rigs.
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Demand drivers of India’s manganese
alloy production
Infrastructure: India’s steel consumption is expected to
grow at a CAGR of 8% by 2012 (Source: RNCOS) owing to an
increased government investment in infrastructure. India’s 47
kg per capita steel consumption is paltry against 190 kg
global per capita steel consumption, indicates a scope for
correction. When this happens, demand for manganese alloys
will increase.

Special steels: There has been a gradual shift in construction
from concrete to mild steel to special steels. India’s per capita
stainless steel consumption is 1.2 kg whereas the global
average per capita consumption is 9.4 kg. Modern
constructions like glass and steel buildings require quality
stainless steel with a high manganese content. An increasing
number of Indian railway wagons are being made with
stainless steel. Around 10 kg of manganese is required to
produce one ton of mild steel whereas 100-150 kg is required
in one ton of special steel. 

Reserves: India is the world’s seventh highest manganese ore
producer. It possesses an estimated reserve of about 240 MT
of manganese ore, around 2% of the global reserve (Source:
Ministry of Mines). During 2004-05, the ore industry was
working at 91% capacity utilisation but post recession,
capacity utilisation declined to 84% in the quarter ended
December 2009 (Source: Ministry of Steel). The growth of the
manganese alloy industry is directly linked to the growth of
the country’s steel industry.

Indian manganese ore has a high phosphorus content, fit for
the manufacture of silico-manganese used in construction
steel, making India a leading exporter. Silico-manganese is
used as de-oxidant in steel manufacture, enhancing India’s
export potential.

Steel mix: India, the world's tenth largest stainless steel
producer, churns out 1.8-2 MT, consumes 2.2 MT and exports
0.2 MT of stainless steel annually. Stainless steel production
consumes about 5-6% of the total domestic ferro-manganese
and silico manganese production (105 kg manganese alloys
per ton of stainless steel). The economic rebound boosted
steel production, increasing manganese alloys consumption. 

Outlook: Manganese alloys production is set to improve,
owing to increasing steel demand and consumption. 

By 2015-16, India is expected to become the world’s second
largest crude steel producer. 

Domestic consumption of finished steel is estimated at
70.34 MT, production of finished steel at 80.23 MT and
capacity at 124 MT by 2011-12.

A total of 222 MoUs were signed with various states for a
planned steel making capacity of around 276 million tons
(Source: Ministry of Steels) by 2020.

Indian steelmakers are set to make the most of a booming
global demand for steel pipes and tubes with the government
withdrawing the 10% duty on the exports of these products
(Source: IBEF).

According to ICICI Direct, Indian steel companies are likely to
account for 19% of the total global demand (Source: IBEF).

With the growing need for oil and gas transportation
infrastructure, a USD 118 billion opportunity is waiting to be
tapped by steel manufacturers across five years (Source: IBEF).

The Indian manganese alloys edge
The production of manganese alloys is concentrated in a few
pockets like India, China, South Africa and the CIS. While
South African production is hampered due to logistics, power
and political considerations, China’s – the world’s biggest
producer of manganese alloys – government is discouraging
exports by imposing an export duty of 20% owing to the
power-intensive nature of the product. India, on the other
hand, enjoys a number of advantages that make it a globally
favoured supplier.

Low production cost: India enjoys an abundant availability
of low cost manpower (skilled and unskilled).

Abundant industrial power: The industrial supply of power
is available at reasonable rates in India, an edge in a power-
intensive industry over China and South Africa. China is
conserving its energy through an export duty on ferro alloys,
while South Africa is experiencing a sustained power crisis.

Favourable location: Three-fourths of India’s landmass is
accessible by sea, enhancing its ability to service global needs
while manganese ore-rich CIS countries are landlocked.

Ore edge: India possesses the seventh largest quantity of
manganese ore deposits in the world (Source: Ministry of
Mines). 
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Income accounting method
The Company’s financial statement was prepared on the basis
of conventional historical cost. The Company adopted the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and the Accounting
Standards as per Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.
Disclosures were made in accordance with the requirement of
Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Indian
Accounting Standards. It followed the mercantile system of
accounting and recognised income and expenditures on an
accrual basis. The Company made all relevant provisions
applicable as on 31 March 2010. The absence of any material
qualifications in the Company’s Auditors’ Report indicates that
the Company’s financials presented a true and fair view during
the year under review. 

Review of 2009-10
Total income decreased 24.56% from Rs. 653.72 cr in

2008-09 to Rs. 493.16 cr 

EBIDTA increased 220.83% from Rs. 21.70 cr in 2008-09 to
Rs. 69.62 cr 

PAT increased significantly from Rs. 0.15 cr in 2008-09 to
Rs. 30.25 cr 

Cash profit increased from Rs. 6.30 cr in 2008-09 to
Rs. 46.28 cr 

EPS (basic) increased from Rs. 0.04 in 2008-09 to Rs. 31.16

Margins
EBIDTA margin increased from 3.32% in 2008-09 to 14.12% 

Net profit margin increased from 0.02% in 2008-09 to 6.13% 

Cash profit margin increased from 0.96% in 2008-09 to 9.38%

The Company’s margins increased owing to reduced raw
material costs, robust delta and a strong product mix.

Income analysis
The Company’s total income decreased 24.56% from
Rs. 653.72 cr in 2009-10 to Rs. 493.16 cr in 2008-09, owing
to a decrease in net sales from Rs. 644.13 cr in 2008-09 to
Rs. 477.99 cr in 2009-10. The decline was largely due to a
decline in realisations for the Company’s products. The average
realisation for 2009-10 was Rs. 53,465.83 per MT as
compared to Rs. 82,238.18 per MT in 2008-09.

Income by source: Other income increased from Rs. 2.05 cr
in 2008-09 to Rs. 11.88 cr in 2009-10 owing to foreign
exchange gains. Other income accounted for 2.54% of the
total income.

Income by geography: Exports stood at 36.69% of revenues
in 2009-10, compared with 62.27% in 2008-09. During the
year 2009-10, 68% of the Company’s exports were accounted
by Asia compared to 32% by the western markets. 

Cost analysis
The Company’s total cost decreased 38.91% from Rs. 650.51
cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 397.40 cr in 2009-10. Raw-material cost
was the major cost component, comprising 46.87% of the
total cost in 2009-10 (previous year 64.30%). 

Raw materials: Raw material expenses decreased significantly
by 55.46% from Rs. 418.25 cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 186.28 cr in
2009-10, owing to reduced manganese ore prices. The major
raw material for the Company is manganese ore. 

Power and fuel: Power and fuel costs increased 58.74% from
Rs. 80.53 cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 127.83 cr in 2009-10, owing to
an increase in electricity charges, arrear demand raised by DVC
and power generation costs. This cost accounted for 32.17%
of the total expenses in 2009-10. Electricity consumption was
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Finance review

Cost component break-up

Segment Amount       % of total cost % of total cost
(in Rs. cr) in 2009-10 in 2008-09

Raw material 186.28 46.87 64.30

Power and fuel 127.83 32.17 12.38

Manufacturing and other expenses 83.29 20.96 23.32



dependent upon the type of products that the Company
manufactured; higher electricity was consumed for
manufacturing value-added products. Electricity consumption
per metric tons of ferro alloys produced increased from an
average 3,837 units to 4,534 units but was more than
recovered by the increase in realisations. 

Manufacturing expenses: This cost increased from Rs. 9.51
cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 12.69 cr in 2009-10, owing to repair and
maintenance expenses incurred towards machinery, stores and
packing materials. 

Taxation
Total taxation (including current tax, deferred tax and fringe
benefit tax) for 2009-10 increased to Rs. 13.71 cr as against
Rs. 0.84 cr in 2008-09. The current tax provided for the year
increased from Rs. 1.08 cr to Rs. 9.66 cr in 2009-10, owing to
an increase in profits. The effective tax rate for the year was
21.90%.   

Capital employed
Capital employed decreased 2.31% from Rs. 233.49 cr in
2008-09 to Rs. 228.10 cr in 2009-10 owing to a decline in
debt funds. The Company’s return on average capital
employed stood at 24.97% for 2009-10.

Own funds: Own funds comprised share capital, reserves and
surplus. The Company’s net worth increased 32.18% from
Rs. 88.67 cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 117.20 cr in 2009-10, owing to
an increase in reserves and surplus (increased from Rs. 78.96 cr
in 2008-09 to Rs. 107.49 cr in 2009-10). During the year
under review, equity capital remained unchanged at Rs. 9.71
cr. The Company’s equity share comprised 97,11,450 equity
shares with a face value of Rs.10.  

External funds: External funding decreased 26.66% during
the year. The Company’s debt (secured and unsecured) stood
at Rs. 104.46 cr as on 31 March 2010 as against Rs.142.43 cr
as on 31 March 2009. The Company enjoyed a debt-equity
ratio of 0.56 as on 31 March 2010 compared with 0.79 as on
31 March 2009. Interest cost decreased 4.07% from Rs. 14.26
cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 13.68 cr in 2009-10. The average cost of
funds stood at 11.08% in 2009-10. Interest cover improved
from 1.52 in 2008-09 to 5.09 in 2009-10, reflecting the
Company’s growing ability to service debt. 

Gross block
The Company’s gross block increased 94.46% from Rs. 78.28
cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 152.22 cr in 2009-10 owing to the
addition of Meghalaya unit. The Company’s depreciation
increased from Rs. 6.45 cr to Rs. 11.98 cr in 2009-10 owing to

an increase in gross block. Accumulated depreciation was
28.07% of the gross block, indicating the newness of assets.
Return on average net block for 2009-10 stood at 73.42%. 
The Company’s capital work-in-progress decreased from Rs.
72.25 cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 6.39 cr in 2009-10 owing to the
commissioning of its Meghalaya unit.

Working capital
The Company’s working capital is used for purchasing raw
material, managing overheads and customer credit. The
Company’s working capital decreased 1.37% from 
Rs. 108.60 cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 107.11 cr in 2009-10.
Working capital, as a percentage of capital employed for the
year, stood at 46.96% for the year as compared to 46.51%,
the previous year. 

Sundry debtors: Debtors increased 53.41% from Rs. 39.62 cr
in 2008-09 to Rs. 60.78 cr in 2009-10. Debtors exceeding six
months stood at Rs. 1.28 cr for the year. The average debtors’
cycle increased to 38 days of turnover equivalent in 2009-10
(previous year 21 days). 

Cash and bank balance: Cash and bank balance increased
from Rs. 8.77 cr. in 2008-09 to Rs. 33.20 cr in 2009-10.  

Loans and advances: Loans and advances increased 6.06%
from Rs. 84.62 cr in 2008-09 to Rs. 89.75 cr in 2009-10. 

Current liabilities and provisions: Current liabilities and
provisions increased 31.03% from Rs.102.50 cr in 2008-09 to
Rs. 134.31 in 2009-10 owing to the increased sundry
creditors, which increased from Rs. 100.97 cr in 2008-09 to
Rs. 132.19 cr 2009-10. 

Forex management
During 2009-10, the Company imported basic raw material
worth Rs. 85.14 cr (CIF basis) and incurred Rs. 5.44 cr in
foreign currency expenditure. The Company’s exports (FOB
value) for the year stood at Rs. 173.04 cr as compared to
Rs. 379.42 cr in 2008-09. The exports of the Company against
imports served as a natural hedge. The Company’s net foreign
exchange earnings for the year 2009-10 stood at Rs. 82.46 cr,
as compared to Rs. 67.41 cr, the previous year. This was
mainly due to the fact that although exports were high in
2008-09 the Company’s raw material imports were also quite
high (Rs. 308.96 cr) compared to 2009-10. 
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01. Funding risk
The Company’s existing operations do not face any funding
risks as the Company possesses sufficient internal accruals and
working capital facilities. 

02. Funding cost risk
The Company’s attractive gearing of 0.56 as on 31 March
2010 will translate into a low funds cost when the Company
decides to mobilise debt. 

03. Receivables risk
Receivables management is critical to the Company’s success
as any stagger could increase debt and debt cost. The
Company manufactured value-added products, addressed
customised needs, catered to quality-demanding customers
and secured a major part of its sales with upfront payments
(Letters of Credit in the case of export). Debtors (expressed in
days of turnover equivalent) were 45 days of turnover
equivalent in 2009-10. 

04. Geography risk
The Company’s exports to low-growth countries may affect
growth. As a counter-measure, the Company exported to fast-
growing Asian countries. Asian countries accounted for 68%
of Company’s exports during 2009-10.

05. Raw material risk
The Company is always exposed to the risk of an inability to
book adequate raw material on the one hand and incur
inventory losses should raw material prices crash on the other.
The Company worked consistently with the world’s largest
manganese ore supplier for seven years, procuring adequate
material even in the most challenging times, protecting the
Company’s customer schedules. The Company stocks a raw
material inventory equivalent to four months of production. 

06. Power risk
Interrupted power supply could affect asset utilisation. The
Company suffered from low asset utilisation owing to a
decline in power feed from the Damodar Valley Corporation.
To protect its interest, the Company commissioned a captive
power plant (15 MW) in April 2009. It is also investing,
(through a subsidiary) Rs. 250 cr in creating a 72 MVA plant

in the Visakhapatanam SEZ, derisking itself from a significant
dependence on the Asansol location. 

07. Location risk
A distance from power, water, ore, rail and port could affect
manganese alloy manufacture. The Company is attractively
placed in this regard: power is available from DVC (1 km),
water from the river Barakar (4 km), a railway siding is at
Radhanagar/ Asansol (15 km), Haldia port is only 300 km
away and mines (owned by its subsidiary company) 460 km. 

08. Capital intensity risk
Fresh greenfield capital investments are estimated at Rs. 3 cr
per MVA even as minimum furnace sizes are rising. The
Company’s furnaces are working at a high utilisation,
catalysing returns. The relatively small furnace sizes – average
8 MVA are an advantage given the Company’s niche business
model, entailing the concurrent production of small volumes
for different customer requirements. 

09. Customer risk
A decline in steel offtake could affect the manganese alloys
market. The Company is de-risked for the following reasons:
steel accounts for more than 90% of all metals used and its
consumption is almost 20 times greater than the annual
consumption of all other metals combined. Every dollar of
fixed asset investment is 14 times as steel-intensive as every
dollar of consumption in the US and other developed
economies (Source: World Steel Dynamics). This helps explain
why China consumes over three times as much steel as the US
despite China’s economy being less than half that of the US.

10. Environment risk
The manufacture of ferro alloys releases noxious gases. The
Company invested in emission-managing equipment (electro-
stating precipitators and bag filters), processes, practices and
periodic audits. Its operations were declared safe and its
emissions were found well within statutory norms. 

11. Volatility risk
Realisations and costs could be volatile. The Company
procures raw material at a certain price and books end
product sale immediately without affecting its spread.

Risk management



Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the 25th Annual Report on the business and operations, together with the audited

statements of accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Financial highlights
The financial performance of the Company, for the year ended 31 March 2010 is summarised below:

Directors' Report

Dear Shareholders,
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(Rs. in lacs)

2009-10 2008-09

Financial results 

Sales and other income 49,316 65,372

Gross profit 5,593 744 

Less: Depreciation 1,198 645 

Profit before tax 4,395 99 

Less: Provision for taxation: 

For income tax 966 108 

For fringe benefit tax – 6

For deferred tax 405 (30)

Profit after taxes 3,024 14

Add: Profit brought forward from previous year 6,621 7,092 

Balance available for appropriation 9,645 7,106 

Appropriation  

Proposed dividend 

On equity shares 146 97 

On preference shares – 10 

Income tax on proposed dividend 25 18 

Transfer to General Reserve 200 –

Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve – 360 

Balance retained  in Profit & Loss A/c 9,274 6,621

9,645 7,106



Operations and outlook
During the year under review Company’s total revenue was

Rs. 49316 lacs. Profit before tax has increased from Rs. 99 lacs

in 2008-09 to Rs. 4395 lacs in 2009-10 and Profit after tax

stood at Rs. 3024 lacs in the year 2009-10. The Company

earned a revenue of Rs. 216 lacs from its wind turbine

generators. 

The year 2009-10 has seen a turnaround in global economy,

which was severely hit by recession in the previous year. Though

the demand in western markets continued to be sluggish,

demand in Asian markets increased significantly. The Company

was quick to notice this trend and shifted its focus to Asian

markets. The operating performance during the first half of the

year under review was average. However the second half of the

year was excellent due to steady increase in the demand and

prices of manganese alloys. The Company’s profitability also

improved because of commencement of its Meghalaya plant

during the year under review. 

The Company anticipates prices of manganese ore and

manganese alloys will remain stable during the year 2010-11.

The Company is expecting better performance during the

current financial year. 

New project
The Company successfully commissioned a manganese alloys

plant backed by a captive power plant at Byrnihat in Mehgalaya

during the year. This enhanced your Company’s manganese

alloys capacity from 49 MVA to 64MVA and Captive Power Plant

capacity from scratch to 15 MW. 

Re-classification of authorised share
capital and issue of bonus shares 
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on April 28, 2010,

re-classified the Company’s authorised share capital by

converting the redeemable preference share capital portion of

Rs. 5,00,00,000 (Rs. five crore) into equity share capital. Thus,

after re-classification the authorised share capital of the

Company is Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Rs. fifteen crore) divided into

1,50,00,000 (one crore fifty lac) equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

The Board of Directors, at the said meeting, also recommended

issue of bonus equity shares, subject to the approval of the

shareholders, in the proportion of one bonus equity share of

the Company of Rs. 10 each for every two equity shares of the

Company held by the members of the Company and the same

were allotted on 21 June 2010. This resulted in issue of

additional 48,51,925 equity shares of Rs. 10 each and

consequently the paid-up equity share capital of the Company

stand increased to Rs. 14,55,57,750 consisting of 1,45,55,775

equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

The shareholders approval was accorded by passing of

resolution by postal ballot pursuant to the provisions of Section

192A of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies

(passing of the resolution by postal ballot) Rules, 2001 for re-

classification of authorised share capital and issue of bonus

shares, the result of which was announced on 9 June 2010 by

the Chairman Shri B. K. Agarwalla. Both the resolutions were

declared as ‘carried unanimously’.

Dividend
Based on the Company's performance, the Directors are pleased

to recommend for approval of the Members a Dividend of Re 1

per share (10%) on 1,45,55,775 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of

the Company for the financial year 2009-10. The Dividend on

the equity shares, if declared as above, would involve an outflow

of Rs. 145.55 lacs towards dividend and Rs. 24.74 lacs towards

dividend tax, resulting in a total outflow of Rs. 170.29 lacs. 

Public deposits
Your Company did not accept any deposits from the public

within the meaning of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956

and as such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding

as on the Balance Sheet date.

Financial review 
For detailed financial review kindly refer to management

discussion and analysis covered under Corporate Governance

Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

Insurance
The Company’s assets continue to be adequately insured against
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the risk of fire, riot, earthquake and other risks.

Directors
Sri Shrigopal Jhunjhunwala and Sri Vikash Kumar Jewrajka will

retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and

being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. All the

Directors of the Company are in compliance with the provisions

of Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.

The necessary information in respect of the Directors seeking

reappointment as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is

given in the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Subsidiary companies
Particulars relating to the subsidiary companies as required

under Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, are annexed

and form part of this Report.

Consolidated financial statements
In accordance with the Accounting Standard 21 on

Consolidated Financial Statements read with Accounting

Standard 23 on Accounting for Investments in Associates issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, your Directors

have pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial

Statements which form part of this Annual Report.

Auditor’s Report
The Auditor’s Report read along with Notes on Accounts is self-

explanatory and therefore, does not call for any further

comment under Section 217(3) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Statutory auditors
M/s. D K Chhajer & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of

your Company, retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. Your

Directors recommend for their re-appointment at the ensuing

Annual General Meeting.

Directors responsibility statement
Directors responsibility statement pursuant to Section 217(2AA)

of the Companies Act, 1956

The Directors hereby confirm:-

i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial

year ended 31 March 2010, the applicable accounting standards

were followed along with proper explanation relating to

material departures;

ii) That the Directors selected such accounting policies and

applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates

that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the

financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the

year under review;

iii) That the Directors took proper and sufficient care for the

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and

detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) That the Directors prepared the accounts for the financial

year ended 31 March 2010 on a ‘going  concern’ basis.

Corporate Governance
Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock

Exchanges, a separate section on Corporate Governance and a

Certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming

compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as

stipulated, form part of the Annual Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis of financial conditions and

results of operations of the Company for the year under review,

as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the

stock exchanges, is given as a separate statement in this Annual

Report.

Industrial relations and personnel
The relation between the management and employees is very

cordial and the plant is running smoothly with their cooperation.

The following employees received remuneration of

Rs. 24,00,000 or more per annum (employed thought the year)

or Rs. 200000 per month (employed for part of the year). 
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Cash flow statement
The cash flow statement for the year under reference in terms

of Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement with the stock exchange

is annexed hereto.

Conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earning
and outgo
The statement containing the necessary information as required

under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with

the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board

of Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed hereto. This Annexure forms

part of this Report.

Acknowledgment
Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all shareholders,

bankers, suppliers, regulatory and other government authorities

for their assistance, co-operation and the confidence reposed

in your Company. Your Directors also extend their deep sense of

appreciation to the employees of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board

Kalyaneshawari B. K. Agarwalla

21 June 2010             Chairman

Particulars of Employees in terms of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 

Sl. Name Age Qualification and Date of Designation Gross Last employment
No. (years) experience in years appointment (nature of remuneration held (designation)

duties) (Rs.)

1. Sri B. K. Agarwalla 64 B.Com. 1 April 2006 Chairman and Rs. 135 lacs None

43 years Wholetime Director

(To manage the

overall affairs of

the Company) 

2. Sri S. C. Agarwalla 59 B.Com. 1 April 2006 Managing Director Rs. 93 lacs None

40 years (To manage the

affairs of the

Company on day

to day basis)

3. Sri Subodh Agarwalla 32 MBA, B.Tech. 1 July 2006 Wholetime Director Rs. 30 lacs None

9 years (To look after the

Company’s

manufacturing

activities)

Notes:

1. Sri S. C. Agarwalla is father of Sri Subodh Agarwalla. 

2. Appointments of all the above employees are contractual.



Information pursuant to Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report

of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2010.

I. Conservation of energy 

a) Energy conservation measures taken : Regular study is being conducted on the requirement of

energy  conservation measures and steps will be taken, if

any requirement emerges out of the study.  

b) Additional investments and proposals, if any, being : None at present.

implemented for reduction of consumption of energy

c) Impact of the measures at (a) & (b) above for reduction : Not applicable 

of energy consumption and the consequent impact on 

the cost of production of goods

d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production is given below:  
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Annexure to the Directors’ Report

Form - A
Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy

Part – A

Sl. No. Power and fuel consumption Current year ended Previous year ended 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009

1 Electricity

a) Purchased  

Unit (lacs KWH) 2,370.61 2,670.50

Total amount (Rs. in lacs) 9,630.02* 8,053.04

Rate/unit (Rs.) 4.06 3.02

b) Own generation 

Unit (lacs KWH) 1,095.85 –

Total amount (Rs. in lacs) 3,152.92 –

Rate/unit (Rs.) 2.88 –

2 Coal – –

3 Furnace oil – –

4 Others – –

*Current year’s electricity charges include arrear demand of Rs. 1,209.90 lacs, raised by DVC during the year
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II. Technology absorption  
Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form ‘B’ of the

Annexure. 

Form - B
1. Research & Development (R&D) 

During 2009-10, the Company did not carry out any R & D

activities.

2. Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation  

Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption and

innovation and benefits derived as a result thereof. 

Capacity utilisation is high, which shows that the Company

properly absorbed and adopted the available technology. 

3. Information regarding imported technology  

The Company did not import any technology and the plant

operates on indigenous technology.

III. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo
a) Despite continuing recession in western Markets during 2009-

10 the Company achieved export sales of Rs. 17,538 lacs. The

same was due to Company’s emphasis on growing Asian

markets. In 2008-09 share of Asian Markets in Company’s

exports was 50% which increased to 68% in 2009-10.

b) The Particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and

outgo are given in Schedule 23- notes forming part of the

accounts.

By order of the Board,

Kalyaneshawari B. K. Agarwalla

21 June 2010             Chairman

Part – B

Sl. No. Consumption per M.T. of production of ferro alloys Current year ended Previous year ended 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009

1 Electricity (units) 4,534* 3,837

2 Furnace oil (ltrs.) – –

3 Coal (M.T.) – –

4 Others – –

*During the current year electricity consumption per MT appears to be high due to change in product mix.



1. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate
Governance 
Corporate Governance is the combination of voluntary practices
and compliance with laws and regulations leading to effective
control and management of the organisation. Good Corporate
Governance leads to the creation of long term shareholder value
and enhances interest of other stake holders. It brings into focus
the fiduciary and the trusteeship role of the Board to align and
direct the actions of the organisation towards creating wealth
and shareholder value.

Your Company’s philosophy is to implement Corporate
Governance practices to achieve excellence in the chosen field
and to conduct its business in a way which safeguards and adds
value in the long term for the interest of shareholders,
customers, employees, creditors and other stakeholders.
Corporate Governance is founded upon a rich legacy of fair and
transparent governance practises which are in the line of the

requirements under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with
the stock exchange and will continue to pursue the same to
keep pace with fast changing environment.

2. Composition of Board, Directors
Attendance record and Directorship held
as on 31 March 2010
The Board of Directors of the Company presently comprised of
Ten Directors viz. the Four Executive Directors and Six Non-
Executive and Independent Directors.

Four (4) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during
the year 2009-10, on the following dates:

04.06.2009, 30.07.2009, 26.10.2009, 29.01.2010

The Composition of the Board of Directors, attendance record of
the Directors during the year 2009-10 as well as at the last
Annual General Meeting are given below.
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Report on
Corporate Governance 

Sl. Name of the Position No. of Board Attendance No of Directorships No. of Committee#
No. Directors meetings during at the last held in other positions in other

the year 2009-10 AGM held public limited public companies
on 25 July Companies 
2009

Held Attended Chairman Member

1. Sri B.K. Agarwalla Chairman 4 4 Yes 4 1 0
(Executive)

2. Sri S.C. Agarwalla Managing Director 4 4 Yes 5 0 0
(Executive)

3. Sri Aditya Agarwalla Whole Time 4 2 Yes 3 0 2
Director (Executive)

4. Sri Subodh Agarwalla Whole Time 4 4 Yes 2 0 1
Director (Executive)

5. Sri M. Satnaliwala Independent 4 4 Yes 1 0 0
(Non-executive)

6. Sri Nand Kishore Independent 4 4 No 0 0 0
Agarwal (Non-executive)

7. Sri Shrigopal Independent 4 1 Yes 0 0 0
Jhunjhunwala (Non-executive)

8. Sri Raj Kumar Independent 4 3 No 0 0 0
Agrawal (Non-executive)

9. Sri Vikash Kumar Independent 4 4 No 0 0 0
Jewrajka (Non-executive)

10 Sri Biswajit Choudhuri Independent 4 2 No 10 3 3
(Non-executive)

# includes the membership /chairmanship only of Audit Committee(s) and Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances Committee.



None of the Directors is a member of more than 10 Board-level
committees, or a chairman of more than five such committees.

Information supplied to the Board
Detailed agenda are circulated along with relevant information
to the Board members to take appropriate decisions and among
others, this includes:

review of annual operating plans of business and updates,

Capital Budgets and any updates,

quarterly results of the Company, 

minutes of meeting of the Audit Committee and other
committees of the Board,

information on recruitment and remuneration of senior
officers just below the Board level,

materially important show cause, demand, prosecution and
penalty notices,

fatal or serious accidents or dangerous occurrences,

any materially significant effluent or pollution problems,

any materially relevant default in financial obligations to any
by the Company or substantial non-payment for goods sold by
the Company,

any issue which involves possible public or product liability
claims of a substantial nature,

details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement, 

transactions that involve substantial payment towards
goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property,

significant labour problems and their proposed solutions,

significant development in the human resources and industrial
relations fronts,

sale of material nature, of investments, subsidiaries, assets,
which is not in the normal course of business,

quarterly details of foreign exchange exposure and the steps
taken by management to limit the risk of adverse exchange rate
movement and 

non-compliance of any regulatory or statutory provision or
listing requirements as well as shareholder services such as non-
payment of dividend and delays in share transfer.

The Board of Maithan Alloys is regularly presented with all
information under the above heads whenever applicable and
materially significant. These are submitted either as part of the

agenda papers well in advance of the Board meeting or are
tabled in the course of the Board meetings considering the
nature of Agenda.  

3. Audit Committee
The Board has duly constituted the Audit Committee pursuant
to the provisions of Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956
and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The terms of reference
of Audit Committee are as follows:

Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and
disclosure of financial information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

Recommending to the Board the appointment and removal
of external auditor, fixation of audit fee and approval for
payment of any other services;

Reviewing with management the annual and/or quarterly
financial statements before submission to the Board;

Reviewing with the management and external and internal
auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function;

Discussing with internal auditors any significant finding and
follow-up on such issues;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the
internal auditors in matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity, or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature, and then reporting such matter to the Board;

Discussing with external auditors before the audit commences
on the nature and scope of audit, as well as having post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

Approval of appointment of any person heading the finance
person including CFO/ WTD(Finance)

Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management
policies; and

Examining reasons for substantial default in the payment to
depositors, shareholders (in case of non payment of declared
dividends) and creditors, if any.

Five (5) meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the
year 2009-10, on the following dates :

08.04.2009 04.06. 2009 30.07. 2009
26.10.2009 29.01.2010
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The constitution of the Committee and the attendance of each member of the Committee is given below :

4. Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee reviews and makes

recommendations on annual salaries to be paid to the

Company’s Managing/ Whole Time Directors within the overall

ceiling fixed by the Shareholders. 

1(One) meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held

during the year 2009-10, on 4 June 2009.

The composition of the Committee and the attendance of each

member of the Committee is given below :

Details of remuneration paid to Directors for the year ended 31 March 2009 are as follows:

The Company has not issued any stock option during the year

2009-10.

A sitting fee of Rs. 5000/- is being paid to each non-executive

Director of the Company for every meeting of the Board of

Directors attended by them. 

5. Investors’ Grievances and Share
Transfer Committee
The Board has constituted an “Investors’ Grievances and Share

Transfer Committee”, mainly to look into share transfer and

shareholder/ investor grievances. 

Four (4) meetings of the Investors’ Grievances and Share

Transfer Committee were held during the year 2009-10, on the

following dates:

04.06. 2009 30.07. 2009 07.10.2009 29.01.2010
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Name Designation Executive / Non-executive Committee Meetings

/ Independent Attended

Sri M. Satnaliwala Chairman Independent (Non-executive) 5

Sri Nand Kishore Agarwal Member Independent (Non-executive) 5

Sri Raj Kumar Agrawal Member Independent (Non-executive) 4

Name Designation Executive / Non-executive Committee Meetings

/ Independent Attended

Sri Nand Kishore Agarwal Chairman Independent (Non-executive) 1

Sri Shrigopal Jhunjhunwala Member Independent (Non-executive) 1

Sri Raj Kumar Agrawal Member Independent (Non-executive) 1

Sl. No. Name of the Director Remuneration (in Rs.) Commission (in Rs.) Other Benefits (in Rs.)

1. Sri B.K. Agarwalla 90,00,000 45,00,000 Nil

2. Sri S.C. Agarwalla 48,00,000 45,00,000 Nil

3. Sri Aditya Agarwalla 12,00,000 Nil Nil

4. Sri Subodh Agarwalla 30,00,000 Nil Nil

Note: 

All the Executive Directors are appointed for a period of 5 years except Sri Subodh Agarwalla, whose tenure is for 4 years 9 months.

All the contracts of appointment can be terminated by giving one month notice by either side.



During the year 2009-10 the Company has received 2 complaints, which were attended. As on 31 March 2010, no grievances were

unaddressed.

6. General Body Meetings
The location and time of the Annual General Meetings held during the last 3 years are as follows:
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The Composition of the Committee and the attendance record of the Directors during the year 2009-10 is given below:

Annual General For the year Date Time Venue

Meeting

22nd 2007 22 September 2007 2.00 P.M. 3F, East India House, 20 British Indian Street,

Kolkata- 700 069

23rd 2008 6 September 2008 11.00 A.M. “The Conclave” 216 A J C Bose Road,

Kolkata – 700 017

24th 2009 25 July 2009 11.00 A.M. “The Conclave” 216 A J C Bose Road,

Kolkata – 700 017

No Special Resolution was passed through Postal Ballot during

the year 2009-10. None of the Business proposed to be

transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting require

passing a Special Resolution through Postal Ballot.

7. Disclosures 
A. Disclosures on materially significant related party

transactions that may have potential conflict with the

interests of company at large.

Attention of members is drawn to the disclosures of

transaction with the related parties set out in Notes on accounts

no. 12 in the Schedule 22, forming part of the Annual Accounts.

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were

in conflict with the interests of the Company.

The Company enters into related party transactions based on

various business exigencies such as liquidity, profitability and

capital resources of the associates. All related party transactions

Details of Special Resolution passed in Last three Annual General Meetings.

Annual General For the year Special Resolution passed

Meeting

22nd 2007 Appointment and remuneration of Sri Sudhanshu Agarwalla, President of the Company

23rd 2008 Revision in the terms remuneration of Sri Subodh Agarwalla, Whole Time Director 

Delisting of Equity shares of the Company from Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited.

24th 2009 None

Name Designation Executive / Non-executive Committee Meetings

/ Independent Attended

Sri Raj Kumar Agarwal Chairman Independent 4

Sri S. C. Agarwalla Member Executive 4

Sri Aditya Agarwalla Member Executive 3



are negotiated at arms length and are only intended to promote

the interests of the Company.

B. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties,

and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock

Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any

matter related to capital markets, during the last three

years.

During the last three years, no penalties or strictures have

been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI

or any other statutory authorities on matters related to capital

markets. 

C. Whistle Blower policy and affirmation that no

personnel have been denied access to the audit

committee.

The Company has not framed any Whistle Blower Policy;

however, none of the employees are restrained to approach the

members of Audit Committee.

D. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements

and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements of this

clause.

The Company complies with all the mandatory requirements

and one non-mandatory requirement of Clause 49 of Listing

Agreement viz. constitution of Remuneration committee of

Directors 

Compliance by the Company

The CEO and CFO of the Company have certified to the Board

on the prescribed matters as required under Clause 49 of the

Listing Agreement and the said certificate was considered by

the Board at its meeting held on 21 June 2010.

8. Means of Communication
The Company intimates un-audited as well as audited financial

results to the Stock Exchanges immediately after these are taken

on record by the Board. These financial results are published in

The Financial Express/the Economic Times (English Edition) &

Dainik Lipi (Bengali edition)’. 

Website where financial results are displayed 

– www.maithanalloys.in

Whether Company also displayed official news releases 

– Not applicable 

The presentations made to institutional investors or to the

analysts  during the year – None 

9. Management Discussion and Analysis
Report
Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a Management

Discussion and Analysis Report is given in a separate section

elsewhere in this report

10. General Shareholder Information

1. Annual General Meeting

- Day, Date, Time and Venue : Wednesday, the 18th of August, 2010 at 11 A.M.

“The Conclave” 

216, A J C Bose Road, Kolkata - 700 017

2. Date of Book Closure : From 14 August 2010 to 18 August 2010

(both days inclusive)

3. Dividend payment date : On or before 18 September 2010. 

4. Financial year : 1st April to 31st March

5. Financial Calendar for 2009-2010

Board Meetings for consideration   : i) 1st/2nd Week of August, 2010 for consideration of unaudited

of financial results financial results for 3 months ending 30 June 2010. 

ii) 1st/2nd week of November, 2010 for consideration of Unaudited

financial results for 3 months/half year ending 30 September 2010.
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: iii) 1st/2nd February, 2011 for consideration of Unaudited financial
results for 3 & 9 months ending 31st December, 2010. 
iv) April to June, 2011 for consideration of Un-audited/ audited financial
results for the year 2010-2011. 

6. Listing of Equity Shares : i) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
on Stock Exchange 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata-700 001.

The Equity shares of the Company are traded at
ii)The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001
w.e.f. from 14th May, 2008 under “Permitted Category”

7. Payment of Listing fees : The Listing fees have been paid by the Company 

8. ISIN Code : INE683C01011 

9. Stock Code : 023915 – The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited     
590078 - Bombay Stock Exchange Limited                  

10. Share Registrar & Transfer Agent : M/s Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. 
6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700001

11. Share Transfer System : The Company has appointed M/s Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.
(Share Registrar & Transfer Agent) to carry out share transfer for physical
as well as electronic mode. The Company’s shares are traded on stock
exchanges in compulsory demat mode. Share transfers, which are
received in physical form are processed and the Share Certificates are
returned within a period of 14 days from the date of receipt provided
the documents being valid and complete in all respects. The
dematerialised shares are transferred directly to the beneficiaries by the
depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Ltd. and The Central
Depository Services (India) Ltd.

12. Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity: The shares of the Company are in compulsory demat segment and are
available for trading in the depository systems of both the National
Securities Depository Ltd. and The Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.
As on 31 March 2010, 84,89,146 Equity Shares of the Company,
forming 87.48% of the share capital of the Company, stand dematerialised.

13. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants : As at 31 March 2010, the Company had no outstanding GDR’s/ADR’s
or any Convertible instruments, /Warrant or any convertible instruments.
conversion date and likely impact 
on equity

14. Address for correspondence : The Company Secretary
Maithan Alloys Limited
3F, East India House, 20 British Indian Street, Kolkata – 700 069

15. Investor grievance e-mail id : office@maithanalloys.com

16. Plant/Works location

Ferro Alloys Division : i) West Bengal
P.O. Kalyaneshwari-713 369, Dist. Burdwan (W.B.)

ii) Meghalaya
A-6, EPIP, Byrnihat, Dist. Ri-Bhoi, Meghalaya – 793101



Wind Mill Division : i) Rajasthan
Plot No.  Vill, Hansuwa, Dist. Jaisalmer , Rajasthan

ii) Maharashtra
Vill. Ghatnandre (Dhalgaon), Tal. Kawathe Mahankal,
Dist. Sangli, Maharashtra

16. Market Price - High/ Low during each : i) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.
month in last financial year There was no trading in shares of the Company during the year 2009-10.

ii) Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
The Trading details at Bombay Stock Exchange is given below:
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Month High Price Low Price No. of Shares

Apr-09 102.20 70.30 1,55,645

May-09 124.00 76.40 2,06,969

Jun-09 130.45 72.85 2,80,805

Jul-09 87.45 66.50 79,785

Aug-09 96.65 72.10 63,442

Sep-09 106.95 90.00 1,09,324

Oct-09 101.55 87.20 87,650

Nov-09 102.00 82.00 70,535

Dec-09 114.70 85.85 1,42,370

Jan-10 123.95 90.00 1,62,580

Feb-10 142.20 102.00 2,51,493

Mar-10 182.20 132.50 2,03,660

Source: www.bseindia.com 
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17. Distribution of shareholding as on 31 March 2010

11. Compliance Certificate from the Auditors
Certificate from the Auditors of the Company, M/s D K Chhajer & Co., confirming compliance of the conditions of Corporate

Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, is annexed herewith.
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By order of the Board,

Kalyaneshawari S. C. Agarwalla

21 June 2010             Managing Director

Kalyaneshawari S. C. Agarwalla

21 June 2010             Managing Director

To the members

Maithan Alloys Limited

In compliance with the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange relating to the Corporate

Governance, I confirm that, on the basis of confirmations/ declarations received, all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel

of the Company have complied with the Code of Conduct framed by the Company relevant to financial year ended 31 March 2010.

Declaration by the Managing Director
and CEO

No. of Shares Shareholders Shareholding

Number % of Total Shares % of Total

Upto  500 2117 83.91 252414 2.60

501 -     1,000 125 4.95 106117 1.09

1001 -     2,000 79 3.13 119822 1.23

2,001 -     3,000 79 3.13 199783 2.06

3,001 -     4,000 24 0.95 86005 0.89

4,001 -     5,000 13 0.52 63677 0.66

5,001 -   10,000 10 0.40 68527 0.71

10,001 and above 76 3.01 8807505 90.76

Total 2523 100.00 9703850 100.00

No of shares in Physical mode 214 8.48 1214704 12.52

No of Shares in Demat mode

- NSDL 1399 55.45 8116104 83.64

- CDSL 910 36.07 373042 3.84

Total 2523 100.00 9703850 100.00
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To the members

Maithan Alloys Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Maithan Alloys Limited (the Company) for the year

ended 31 March 2010 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchange in India. 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination

was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions

of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has complied with

the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement. 

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended 31 March 2010, no investor grievances are pending

for a period exceeding 30 days against the Company as on 31 March 2010 as per the records maintained by the Company and

presented to the Investors’ Grievances and Share Transfer Committee. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For D.K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered  Accountants

Niraj K Jhunjhunwala

Kalyaneshwari Partner

21 June 2010   M. No. F057170

Auditor’s Certificate on compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in Clause 49 of The Listing
Agreement
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Auditors’ Report 

To

The Members of

MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of MAITHAN

ALLOYS LIMITED as at 31 March 2010 and also the Profit

and Loss Account and the Cash Flow statement for the year

ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial

statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion. 

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,

2003 as amended by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)

(Amendment) Order, 2004, issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of Sub-section (4A) of

Section 227 of ‘The Companies Act, 1956’ (the ‘Act) and

on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the

Company as we considered appropriate and according to

the information and explanations given to us, we enclose

in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in

Paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in

Paragraph 3 above, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations,

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purpose of our audit ;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by

law have been kept by the Company so far as appears

from our examination of those books; 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the

Cash Flow statement dealt with by this report are in

agreement with the books of account; 

d. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss

Account and the Cash Flow statement dealt with by this

report comply with the accounting standards referred

to in Sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies

Act, 1956. 

e. On the basis of written representations received from

the directors, as on 31 March 2010, and taken on

record by the Board of Directors, we report that none

of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2010

from being appointed as a director in terms of Clause

(g) of Sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies

Act, 1956; 

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us, the said

accounts give the information required by the

Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and

give a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India : 

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2010;

b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the

Profit for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow statement, of the cash

flows for the year ended on that date.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala

Place: Kalyaneshwari Partner

Dated: 21 June 2010 M. No- F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E
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Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date to the members of Maithan Alloys Limited

i) In respect of fixed assets:
a) The Company has maintained proper records

showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of its Fixed Assets.

b) All fixed assets were physically verified by the
management during the year. We have been
informed that no material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification.

c) The Fixed Assets disposed of during the year are not
substantial and hence, it has not affected the going
concern status of the Company.

ii) In respect of inventories:
a) The management has conducted physical

verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year.

b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the
management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature
of its business.

c) The Company is maintaining proper records of
inventory and no material discrepancies were
noticed on physical verification.

iii) a) During the year, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956.Accordingly, the clauses (iii) (b), (iii) (c), (iii) (d)
are not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has taken unsecured
loans from a Company covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956. The maximum amount involved during
the year was Rs.10.88 crores and the year end
balance was Rs.10.88 crores.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the rate of interest and
other terms and condition of the above loan are not
prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

d) In respect of aforesaid loan, there is no stipulation as
to repayment thereof.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal
control system commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business with regard to
purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of
goods and services. During the course of our audit, no
major weakness has been noticed in the internal controls
in respect of these areas.

v) In respect of the contracts or arrangements referred to in
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956:

a) According to the information and explanation given
to us by the management, we are of the opinion
that the particulars of contracts or arrangements
referred to in Section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956 have been entered in the register required to
be maintained under that section; 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, transactions made in
pursuance of such contracts or arrangements have
been made at prices which are reasonable having
regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant
time where such market prices are available.

vi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits from public hence the provisions of Section 58A,
58AA or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act 1956 are not applicable to the Company.

vii) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has an adequate
internal audit system commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business.

viii) We have been informed that the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records by the
Company under Section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act,
1956.

ix) a) According to the records of the Company, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate
authorities. 

b) According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of

Annexure to the Auditors’ Report
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income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, custom duty and excise duty were outstanding, at the year end for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, details of dues of sales tax, income tax, custom duty, wealth
tax, excise duty, service tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are given below:

Particulars Financial years to Forum where Amount
which the matter pertains dispute is pending (Rs. in lacs)

Excise Duty & Service Tax 2006-07 Joint Commissioner, Bolpur 10.45
Excise Duty & Service Tax 2008-09 Joint Commissioner, Bolpur 12.37
Excise Duty & Service Tax 2008-09 Assistant Commissioner, Asansol 10.91
Excise Duty & Service Tax 2008-09 Commissioner (Appeal), Kolkata 4.98
Excise Duty & Service Tax 2009-10 Joint Commissioner, Bolpur 42.85
Excise Duty & Service Tax 2009-10 Assistant Commissioner, Asansol 7.85
Excise Duty & Service Tax 2009-10 Commissioner (Appeal), Bolpur 141.38

x) The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of
the financial year and it has not incurred any cash losses
in the current and immediately preceding financial year.

xi) In our opinion and according to information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank or
debenture holders.

xii) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on
the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities.

xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a
nidhi/mutual benefit society. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. 

xiv) The Company has maintained proper records of the
transactions in respect of dealing or trading in shares and
timely entries have been made therein. All shares acquired
by the Company were held in its own name.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans
taken by others from banks or financial institutions. 

xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us the term loans were applied for
the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

xvii) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of the overall examination of the

balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
investment. 

xviii) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
of shares during the year under review.

xix) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not issued any
secured debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 4(xix) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company. 

xx) During the year, the Company has not made any public
issue and therefore the question of disclosing the end use
of money raised by public issue does not arise. 

xxi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and as per the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that
no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala

Place: Kalyaneshwari Partner

Dated: 21 June 2010 M. No- F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E
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As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. B. K. Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants Chairman 

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Managing Director
Membership No. F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Rajesh K. Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary

Rs. (in '000) 
Schedule As at As at

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders' Fund

Share Capital  1 97,070 97,070 

Reserves & Surplus  2 1,074,910 789,572 

Loan Funds

Secured Loans 3 824,353 1,424,258 

Unsecured Loans 4 220,231 –   

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 5 64,389 23,898 

Total 2,280,953 2,334,798 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets 6

Gross Block 1,522,245 782,786 

Less : Depreciation  427,334 307,512 

Net Block 1,094,911 475,274 

Capital work in progress 7 63,857 722,507 

1,158,768 1,197,781 

Investments 8 50,994 50,994 

Current Assets, Loans & Advances 

Inventories  9 576,921 880,821 

Sundry Debtors 10 607,820 396,180 

Cash and Bank Balances 11 332,028 87,654 

Other Current Assets 12 121,905 99,957 

Loans & Advances 13 775,604 646,374 

2,414,278 2,110,986 

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions 14 1,343,087 1,024,963 

Net Current Assets  1,071,191 1,086,023 

Total 2,280,953 2,334,798 

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts  23 
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As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. B. K. Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants Chairman 

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Managing Director
Membership No. F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Rajesh K. Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary

Rs. (in '000) 
Schedule Year ended Year ended

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

INCOME 
Sales (Gross) 15 4,976,695 6,615,631 
Less: Inter Unit Transfer 28,127 –

4,948,568 6,615,631 
Less: Excise Duty 168,676 174,329 
Net Sales 4,779,892 6,441,302 
Export Incentive 32,866 75,532 
Other Income 16 118,832 20,386 
Increase/(Decrease) in Stock 17 (261,398) 184,857 

4,670,192 6,722,077 
EXPENDITURE
Purchases of Trade Goods 435,683 956,478 
Raw Materials Consumed 18 1,862,764 4,182,469 
Power & Fuel 19 1,278,295 805,304 
Manufacturing Expenses 20 126,916 95,118 
Administrative, Selling & Other Expenses 21 270,340 465,715 
Interest 22 136,839 142,640 
Depreciation 119,842 64,463 

4,230,679 6,712,187 
Profit before Tax 439,513 9,890 
Provision for Taxation :  
Current Tax 96,631 10,846 
Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit)  (Net) 40,491 (3,002)
Fringe benefit Tax – 641 
Profit After Tax 302,391 1,405 
Add: Excess/(Short) provision for FBT for earlier years (23) –
Add: Balance brought forward from Previous year 662,074 709,234 
Amount available for Appropriations 964,442 710,639 
APPROPRIATIONS : 
Transfer to General Reserve 20,000 –
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve – 36,000 
Proposed Dividend : 
- On Equity Shares 14,555 9,704 
- On Preference Shares –   1,036 
Corporate Dividend Tax 2,474 1,825 
Balance carried to Balance Sheet  927,413 662,074 

964,442 710,639 
Earnings Per Share (Basic/Diluted) (Rs.) 31.16 0.04 
(Face Value Per Share Rs.10/-) 
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts  23 
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As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. B. K. Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants Chairman 

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Managing Director
Membership No. F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Rajesh K. Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary

Rs. (in '000) 
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax and extraordinary items 439,513 9,890 
Adjustments for : 
Depreciation 119,842 64,463 
Interest (Net of Receipt) 128,820 138,335 
Irrecoverable Advances & Debts written off 35,961 –   
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Investments –   (11,282)
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Fixed Assets 16 153 
Operating profit before Working Capital changes 724,152 201,559 
Adjustment for : 
Trade and other receivables (401,828) (308,643)
Inventories 303,900 157,113 
Trade and other payables 313,626 132,918 
Cash generated from operations  939,850 182,947 
Interest Paid (Net of Receipt) (128,257) (139,713)
Direct Taxes Received/(Paid) (94,168) (184,079)
Cash flow before extraordinary items 717,425 (140,845)
Extraordinary items –   –   
Net cash from operating activities   (A) 717,425 (140,845)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (739,501) (17,369)
Sale of Fixed Assets 5 240 
Capital Work In progress 658,650 (278,129)
Purchase of Investments –   (18,000)
Sale of  Investments –   125,737 
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities  (B) (80,846) (187,521)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Redemption of Preference Shares –   (36,000)
Premium on Redemption –   (18,000)
Dividend Paid including Tax on Dividend (12,532) (26,847)
Proceeds / (Repayment) from / of borrowings (379,674) 436,683 
Net cash from financing activities    (C) (392,206) 355,836 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash Equivalents  (A+B+C) 244,374 27,470 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 87,654 60,184 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 332,028 87,654 

Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 March 2010



General Reserve
As per last Account 62,500 62,500 
Add: Transferred from Profit &Loss Account 20,000 –   

82,500 62,500 
Capital Reserve  
As per last Account 18,998 18,998 
Share Premium A/c
As per last Account 10,000 28,000 
Less: Premium on Redemption of Preference Shares –   18,000 

10,000 10,000 
Capital Redemption Reserve 36,000 36,000 
Profit & Loss Account 927,412 662,074 

1,074,910 789,572 

A) Authorised Capital 
10,000,000 (PY 1,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 100,000 100,000 
5,00,000 (PY 5,00,000) 10% Cumulative Non-convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 50,000 50,000 

150,000 150,000 
B) Issued & Subscribed Capital 

97,11,450 (PY 97,11,450) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 97,115 97,115 
Nil (PY 3,60,000) 10% Cumulative Non-convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each –   36,000 
Less: Redeemed during the year –   36,000 

–   –   
97,115 97,115 

C) Paid up Capital 
97,03,850 (PY 97,03,850) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 97,039 97,039 
Add: Forfeited Shares (7600)    31 31 

97,070 97,070 
Nil (PY 3,60,000) 10% Cumulative Non-convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each  –   36,000 
Less: Redeemed during the year –   36,000 

–   –   
97,070 97,070 

Note : Out of above – 

17,91,450 (PY 17,91,450) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up issued for consideration other than cash in pursuance of

Scheme of Amalgamation.

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2010

Schedule 1 SHARE CAPITAL

Schedule 2 RESERVES & SURPLUS 
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Term-Loan 434,107 456,735 
Working Capital Loan 
- Rupee Loan 197,409 521,583 
- Foreign Currency Loan 192,837 205,940 
Short-Term Loan: 
- Rupee Loan –   240,000 

824,353 1,424,258 

* Term Loan from Banks are secured against Pari-Passu first charge on all tangible immovable and movable fixed assets of the
Company's units located at Kalyaneshwari and Meghalaya and further secured by second charge on the entire current assets of the
Company, ranking Pari-Passu among the lenders.

* Working Capital Loans are secured against Hypothecation of Inventory, receivables and all other Current Assets, present and
future of the Company and further secured by second charge on the entire fixed assets of the Company, ranking Pari-Passu among
the Bankers.

* Short Term Rupee Loan is secured by mortgage of land of a subsidiary Company.

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

From Body Corporates 220,231 –   
220,231 –   

Deferred Tax Liability arising on a/c of Depreciation 64,875 24,241 
Less: Deferred Tax Asset arising on retirement benefits 486 343 
Net Liability/(Assets) 64,389 23,898 

As on Addition during Sale / As on Up to For the Adjustments Up to As on As on

01.04.2009 the year Adjustments 31.03.2010 01.04.2009 Year 31.03.2010 31.03.2010 31.03.2009

Land

1 Freehold Land & 

Development 12,241 –   –   12,241 –   –   –   –   12,241 12,241 

2 Leasehold Land & 

Development 3,651 1,461 –   5,112 –   –   –   –   5,112 3,651 

Building

3 Non Factory 10,846 1,240 –   12,086 962 475 –   1,437 10,649 9,884 

4 Factory 82,084 44,157 –   126,241 21,402 8,804 –   30,206 96,035 60,682 

Plant & Machinery

5 Ferro Alloys Division 484,029 224,832 –   708,861 245,440 75,237 –   320,677 388,184 238,589 

6 Power Plant Division –   463,934 –   463,934 –   23,879 –   23,879 440,055 –   

7 Windmill Division 176,916 –   –   176,916 35,866 10,165 –   46,031 130,885 141,050 

Other Assets

8 Motor Vehicle 7,879 2,339 42 10,176 2,036 741 20 2,757 7,419 5,843 

9 Furniture & Fixture 1,606 786 –   2,392 548 145 –   693 1,699 1,058 

10 Office Equipment 1,399 504 –   1,903 358 88 –   446 1,457 1,041 

11 Computer 2,135 248 –   2,383 900 308 –   1,208 1,175 1,235 

Total 782,786 739,501 42 1,522,245 307,512 119,842 20 427,334 1,094,911 475,274 

Previous Year 765,956 17,369 539 782,786 243,195 64,463 146 307,512 475,274 –   

Sl. No. PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Schedules to the Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2010

Schedule 3 SECURED LOAN  

Schedule 4 UNSECURED LOAN 

Schedule 5 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/(ASSET) (NET) 

Schedule 6 FIXED ASSETS
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Kalyaneshwari 63,857 15,076 
Meghalaya –   707,431 

63,857 722,507 

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

Long Term
In Subsidiary Company- Unquoted, fully paid up 
AXL Exploration Pvt. Ltd
23,500 (PY 23,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each . 32,994 32,994 
Anjaney Alloys Ltd.
10,00,000 (PY 10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,000 10,000 
Anjaney Minerals Ltd.
7,99,995 (PY 7,99,995) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 8,000 8,000 

50,994 50,994 

(as taken, valued & certified by the management) 
Raw Materials 403,263 337,178 
Stock-in-Process 9,159 15,075 
Finished Goods 68,069 323,598 
Scrap and Slag 367 320 
Stock in Transit 86,204 200,645 
Stores and Packing Materials [includes Stores in Transit Rs.Nil (PY Rs.186,000/-)] 9,859 4,005 

576,921 880,821 

(unsecured, considered good)
Exceeding six months 12,893 9,493 
Other Debts 594,927 386,687 

607,820 396,180 

Cash-in-Hand (as certified by the management) 1,815 1,851 
Balance with Banks 

In Fixed Deposit Accounts (in lien against margin money) 67,472 57,819 
In Current Accounts  198,049 14,997 
Debit balance in cash credit accounts 64,662 –   

Cheques/Drafts in Hand 30 12,987 
332,028 87,654 

Schedules to the Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2010

Schedule 7 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 

Schedule 8 INVESTMENTS 

Schedule 9 INVENTORIES 

Schedule 11 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Schedule 10 SUNDRY DEBTORS 
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2010

Prepaid Expenses 5,603 11,944 
Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits 1,405 1,968 
Balances with Excise Authorities 53,221 86,045 
Subsidy Receivable 61,676 –   

121,905 99,957 

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

(Unsecured, considered good) 
Advances (recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received): 68,682 339,954 
Advances For Capital Goods 983 –   
Advances for Raw Materials & Stores 496,359 107,046 
Security Deposits 5,631 8,439 
I.T. Refundable 94 91 
Advance Tax (Net of Provision) 188,355 190,844 
Share Application Money 15,500 –   

775,604 646,374 

Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors

for Capital Goods 454 17,370 
for Raw Materials 878,616 818,485 
for Expenses 412,663 150,550 
for Others 29,911 23,111 

Unpaid Dividend 265 232 
1,321,909 1,009,748 

Provisions  
Provision for Leave Encashment/ Gratuity/ Bonus 4,149 2,650 
Proposed Dividend 14,555 10,740 
Tax on Dividend 2,474 1,825 

21,178 15,215 
1,343,087 1,024,963 

Schedule 12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Schedule 13 LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Schedule 14 CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS  



Ferro Alloys 4,490,694 5,599,181 
Scrap, Waste etc 6,658 1,072 
Trading Sales 457,742 990,496 
Power 21,601 24,882 

4,976,695 6,615,631 

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

Interest (Gross) (TDS Rs.10,85,980/-, PY Rs.9,63,195/-) 8,019 4,305 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations (Net) 107,791 –   
Discount on DEPB Licence 680 4,727 
Profit on sale of Shares –   11,282 
Commission received (TDS - Rs.2,20,600/-, PY Nil) 2,000 –   
Miscellaneous Receipts 342 72 

118,832 20,386 

Opening stock 505,585 450,468 
Add: Purchases 1,762,259 4,206,162 

2,267,844 4,656,630 
Less : Inter Unit Transfer 28,127 –   
Less : Closing stock 376,953 474,161 

1,862,764 4,182,469 

Electricity charges 932,877 774,773 
Electricity duty 36,701 30,531 
Power Generation Cost 308,717 –   

1,278,295 805,304 

Closing Stock
Finished Goods 68,069 323,598 
Work-In-Progress 9,159 15,075 
Scrap and Slag 367 320 

77,595 338,993 
Less: Opening Stock
Finished Goods 323,598 139,322 
Work-In-Progress 15,075 14,063 
Scrap and Slag 320 751 

338,993 154,136 
Increase/(Decrease) in Stock (261,398) 184,857 

Maithan Alloys Limited 45

Schedules to the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended 31 March 2010

Schedule 15 SALES (GROSS) 

Schedule 16 OTHER INCOME  

Schedule 17 INCREASE (DECREASE) IN STOCK

Schedule 18 RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 

Schedule 19 POWER & FUEL 



Stores & Packing Materials 66,532 58,716 
Carriage Inward 1,929 1,002 
Claims & Demurrage 40,214 25,448 
Repairs & Maintenance :

to Machinery 10,942 2,508 
to Building 2,034 3,256 

Packing & Forwarding Expenses 5,265 4,188 
126,916 95,118 

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

Salary, Wages & Bonus 32,233 21,762 
Directors’ Remuneration  27,000 17,629 
Director's Sitting Fees 95 45 
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds  1,615 1,227 
Gratuity  621 594 
Lease Rent 599 –
Workmen & Staff Welfare  596 648 
Rent  413 35 
Rates & Taxes  6,604 496 
Professional Charges  3,723 4,830 
Insurance Premium  4,097 2,290 
Bank and other financial charges  14,620 52,297 
Auditor’s Remuneration :

As Audit Fees   300 185 
As Tax Audit Fees 25 25 
Certification and other services 36 34 
Reimbursement of Expenses –   19 

Repair & Maintenance  1,080 1,143 
Carriage Outward  35,099 11,648 
Rebate & Discount  11,544 9,232 
Irrecoverable Advances and Debts written off 35,961 –   
Service tax (outward transportation) 725 –   
Loss on sale of fixed assets 16 153 
Brokerage & Commission  13,408 6,225 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation –   182,016 
Export Expenses 55,255 121,454 
Donation –   3,811 
Miscellaneous Expenses  24,675 27,917 

270,340 465,715 

On Unsecured Loan 16,923 2,131 
On Fixed Loan 51,359 37,396 
Others  68,557 103,113 

136,839 142,640 

Schedule 22 INTEREST
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Schedules to the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended 31 March 2010

Schedule 20 MANUFACTURING EXPENSES  

Schedule 21 ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING & OTHER EXPENSES 
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1) Significant Accounting Policies 
a) Nature of Operation

Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Ferro Alloys and generation and supply of Wind
Power.

b) Basis of Accounting  
The financial statements have been prepared to comply, in all material respects, with accounting standards as notified by
Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis. The accounting policies
have been consistently followed by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year except where
otherwise stated.

c) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements require the management of the Company to make certain estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements
and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/materialized.

d) Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less Depreciation. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price net of Cenvat credit
plus any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working condition for it’s intended use. Pre -operative
expenses for major projects are also capitalised, where appropriate. 

e) Investments
Long term Investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of each long term investment is made to
recognise a decline, other than that of temporary in nature.

f) Depreciation 
i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method in the manner and the rates specified in Schedule

XIV to the Companies Act; 1956, except on additions made to Building and Plant & Machineries of Ferro Alloys Units
with effect from 1 April 2006 on which depreciation has been provided on Written Down Value method at the rate
specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act,1956.

ii) Fixed Assets costing below Rs. 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

iii) Depreciation on Fixed Assets added/deducted during the year is provided on pro-rata basis.

iv) The depreciation charge for the assets which have been impaired, are adjusted to allocate the asset’s revised carrying
amount less its residual value, if any, over its remaining useful life. 

v) Intangible assets such as softwares, etc. are amortised based upon their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

g) Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or estimated net realisable value. 
Cost Formula:
Raw Materials : At Weighted Average Cost
Work-in-Process and Finished Goods : At Standard Cost
Trading Stock and Stock-in-Transit : At Acquisition Cost
Packing Materials and Stores and Spares : At Weighted Average Cost

Standard Cost of inventories approximates actual cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Schedule 23 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
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h) Impairment
a. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to ascertain if there is any indication of

impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted
average cost of capital.

b. After Impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

c. A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. However
the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by charging
usual depreciation if there is no impairment.

i) Excise Duty and Sales Tax
Excise Duty is accounted on the basis of both, payments made in respect of goods cleared as also provision made for
goods lying in bonded warehouse. Sales tax paid is charged to profit and loss account.

j) Cenvat Credit
Cenvat Credit on excise duty paid goods /Fixed Assets is accounted for by reducing the acquisition cost of the related
goods / Fixed Assets.

k) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be easily measured.

i) Sale of Goods:
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have passed to the buyer, which
generally coincides with delivery. It includes excise duty but excludes value added tax/sales tax. Excise Duty deducted
from turnover (gross) is the amount that is included in the amount of turnover (gross) and not the entire amount of
liability that arose during the year.

ii) Interest:
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

iii) Export Benefits:
Export Entitlements in the form of Duty Drawback and Duty Entitlement Pass book (DEPB) scheme are recognised in
the Profit and Loss Account when right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of
exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant exports
proceeds.

l) Foreign Currency transaction
i) Initial Recognition 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

ii) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms
of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and non monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

iii) Exchange Differences
Foreign currency assets and liabilities as on the Balance Sheet date are revalued in the accounts on the basis of

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010
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Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

exchange rates prevailing at the close of the period and exchange loss/gain arising therefrom, is adjusted to the cost
of fixed assets or charged to the Profit & Loss Account, as the case may be.

iv) Forward Exchange Contracts
In case of transactions covered by forward contracts, the difference between the contract rate and exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction, is adjusted to the cost of fixed assets or charged to the Profit & Loss Account,
as the case may be, proportionately over the life of the contract.

m) Government grants and subsidies
Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

When the grant or subsidy relates to an expense item, these are deducted from related expense which it is intended to
compensate. Where the grants or subsidy relates to an asset, its value is deducted in arriving at the carrying amount of
the related asset.

n) Borrowing Cost 
Borrowing costs relating to acquisition or construction of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use are included in the cost of fixed assets to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready
to be put to use. Other Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

o) Segment Reporting Policies
i) Identification of Segments:

Primary Segment
Business Segment:
The Company’s operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature of products,
with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.
The Identified segments are manufacturing of ferro-alloys and wind power.

Secondary segment
Geographical segment:
The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of customers.

The geographical segments considered for disclosure are as follows:

• Sales within India include sales to customers located within India.

• Sales outside India include sales to customers located outside India.

ii) Allocation of common Costs:
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to the
total common costs.

iii) Unallocated Items:
The corporate and other segment include general corporate income and expense items, which are not allocated to
any business segment.

p) Intangible Assets
Research and Development Costs:
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is carried forward
when its future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as assured. Any expenditure carried forward is amortised over
the period of expected future sales from the related project, not exceeding ten years.

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment annually when the asset is not yet in use, and otherwise
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Schedule 23 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd...)
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q) Taxation
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period based on applicable
tax rate and laws.

Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax asset on timing differences being
the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal
in one or more subsequent period and is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to re-assess realization.

r) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are
not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

s) Earnings Per Share
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted Earning Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average no. of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

t) Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular
revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated. Cash and cash equivalents in the
balance sheet comprise cash at bank, cash/ cheques in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three
months or less.

u) Employee Benefits

i) Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the profit and loss
account of the year in which the related service is rendered.

ii) Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account
for the year in which the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the present value of the
amount payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post
employment and other long term benefits are charged to the profit and loss account

iii) In respect of Employee Stock Option, the excess of fair price on the date of grant, over the exercise price, is
recognized as Deferred Compensation cost and amortised over vesting period.

v) Lease Transaction:
Where the Company is the lessee: Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease’s payments are recognized as an expense
in the profit & loss Account.

Where the Company is a Lessor: Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognized
in the Profit & Loss Account. Cost including depreciation are recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss Account.
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2) A) Information required by Para 3, 4C and 4D of part (II) of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 : 

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

2009-10 2008-09

a) Licenced Capacity * N.A. N.A.
b) Installed Capacity : Unit Qty. Qty.

Ferro Alloys ** MT 115,600 94,600
Wind Mill *** MW 3.75 3.75

* Not Applicable in view of changed Industrial Licensing Policy
** As certified by the Management, based on interchangeability of products.
*** As certified by the Management.

Unit Quantity in MT Value Quantity in MT Value

Opening Stock
Ferro Alloys
i) Saleable 5,491 2,62,892 1,880 76,772
ii) Unsorted MT 1,355 60,706 1,527 62,550 
Total 323,598 139,322 
Production
Ferro Alloys
i) Saleable 76,451 N.A 69,593 N.A
ii) Unsorted MT (1,071) N.A (172) N.A
Power KWH 6,223,507 –   6,194,913 –   
Sales
Ferro Alloys MT 80,837 4,322,018 65,965 5,424,852 
Power KWH 6,223,507 21,601 6,194,913 24,882 
Scrap Waste, etc –   –   6,658 1,072 
Less: Inter Unit Transfer –   –   28,127 –   –   
Total –   –   4,322,150 5,450,806 
Captive Consumption –   –   –   17.629 –   
Closing Stock :
Ferro Alloys
i) Saleable 1,105 55,051 5,491 262,892
ii) Unsorted – 285 13,018 1,355 60,706 
Total 68,069 323,598 
Trading Goods:
Sales
Ferro Alloys MT 1,651 107,728 1,653 114,164 
Others MT 39,926 350,014 –   876,332 
Total 41,577 457,742 1,653 990,496 
Purchases
Ferro Alloys MT 1,651 111,316 1,653 105,516 
Others MT 39,926 324,367 –   850,962 
Total 41,577 435,683 1,653 956,478 

2009-10 2008-09
Rs. (in '000)

Note : 
i) Quantitative details of slag (waste) is not given as the value of the same is not significant.

ii) Production and Sales excludes 36.00 MT of Ferro Manganese rejected and returned back.

iii) Excise Refund of Rs.49,334,832/- is included in the value of Sales. 
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B) Raw Material Consumed

Items Quantity in MT Value Quantity in MT Value

Ores 158,271 1,339,002 175,690 3,567,988 
Reductants 64,123 421,122 57,543 438,551 
Fluxes 33,492 37,283 9,356 6,886 
Others 5,970 65,357 3,194 169,044 
Total 261,856 1,862,764 245,783 4,182,469 

2009-10 2008-09

C) Value of imported and indigenous raw materials consumed and percentage of each to the total Consumption :

Particulars Percentage Value Percentage Value

Imported 48.77% 908,554 67.85% 2,837,760 
Indigenous 51.23% 954,210 32.15% 1,344,709 

100% 1,862,764 100% 4,182,469 

2009-10 2008-09

Rs. (in '000)

Rs. (in '000)

D) Value of imported and indigenous stores and spare parts consumed and percentage of each to the total
Consumption :

Particulars Percentage Value Percentage Value

Imported NIL NIL NIL NIL
Indigenous 100% 66,532 100% 58,716 

100% 66,532 100% 58,716 

2009-10 2008-09

Rs. (in '000)

E) CIF Value of Imports : Rs.851,380 thousand (Previous year Rs.3,089,601 thousand)

F) FOB Value of Exports : Rs.1,730,442 thousand (Previous year Rs.3,794,243 thousand)

G) Expenditure in Foreign Currency : Rs.54,474 thousand (Previous year Rs.30,464 thousand)

2009-10 2008-09

i) Interest and Finance Charges 41,675 18,004 
ii) Travelling Expenses 27 800 
iii) Demmurage 2,355 5,448 
iv) Membership Subscription 2,350 2,372 
v) Others 8,068 3,840

Rs. (in '000)

3) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of disputed excise duty & service tax demand- Gross
Rs.23,078 thousand (Net of Tax Rs.15,234 thousand) (Previous Year- Gross Rs.3,871 thousand, Net of Taxes- Rs.2,555
thousand)

4) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :
a) Bills Receivable discounted with Bank

Inland Bills Rs.91,472 thousand (Previous year Rs.59,026 thousand)
Foreign Bills Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs. NIL)

b) Letters of Credit issued by Bank and outstanding:
Inland LC Rs.49,230 thousand (Previous year Rs. 100,370 thousand)
Foreign LC Rs.104,382 thousand (Previous year Rs.753,323 thousand)

c) Bank Guarantees issued by Bank and outstanding: Rs.17,277 thousand (Previous Year Rs.23,776 thousand)

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010
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5) Disclosure in respect of Derivative Instruments:
a) Derivative instruments outstanding:

b) All the derivative instruments have been acquired for hedging purposes.
c) Foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments : 

Foreign Currency Contracts Bought/Sold Amount Bought/Sold Amount

USD Sold 9,575.13 – –   
USD Bought 887.90 Bought 4000
JPY-USD Bought 86,126.58 – –   

2009-10 2008-09

(in '000)

Net Profit before Taxation 439,512 9,890 
Add: 
Director's Remuneration 27,000 17,629
Director's Sitting Fees 95 45
Loss on sales of fixed assets 16 153

27,111 17,827
Less:
Profit on sales of shares –   11,282

27,111 6,545
466,624 16,435

Commission @2% 9,332 –   
Commission restricted to 9,000 –

2009-10 2008-09

Rs. (in '000)

2009-10 2008-09

Debtors USD 4,860 USD 1,159
Creditors USD 17,169 USD 14,854

(in '000)

6) Managerial Remuneration under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 :-

7) Expenditure exceeding 1% of revenue included in Miscellaneous Expenses: Nil

8) There are no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2010. This information as required to be disclosed under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

9) Profit/Loss on sale of raw materials, if any, stand adjusted in respective consumption account.

2009-10 2008-09

Directors' Remuneration 18,000 17,629 
Commission to Whole Time Directors 9,000 –    

Computation of Net Profit in accordance with section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 and the commission payable  to
Directors.

Rs. (in '000)

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Schedule 23 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd...)



Annual Report 2009-1054

10) Segment Reporting
Primary Segment Information (Business Segments)

Particulars External Inter Segment Total External Inter Segment Total
Sales Sales Sales Sales

1. Segment Revenue
Ferro Alloys 4,758,291 –   4,758,291 6,416,420 –   6,416,420 
Wind Power 21,601 –   21,601 24,882 –   24,882 
Total Revenue 4,779,892 –   4,779,892 6,441,302 –   6,441,302 

2. Segment Results
Ferro Alloys 558,741 –   558,741 122,660 –   122,660 
Wind Power 9,536 –   9,536 14,364 –   14,364 
Total Segment Results 568,277 568,277 137,024 137,024 
Unallocated Income 72 72 
Profit before interest & taxation 568,349 137,096 
Interest Paid (136,839) (142,640)
Interest Income 8,019 4,305 
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Shares –   11,282 
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets (16) (153)
Taxation for the year including 
adjustments of previous year (137,122) (8,485)
Profit after Taxation 302,391 1,405 

2009-10 2008-09

Rs. (in '000)

Other Information Rs.(in '000)

Particulars Segment Segment Segment Segment
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Ferro Alloys 3,489,723 1,343,065 3,210,463 1,024,958 
Wind Power 134,317 22 149,299 5 
Segment Total 3,624,040 1,343,087 3,359,761 1,024,963 

2009-10 2008-09

Particulars Capital Depreciation Non cash Capital Depreciation Non cash
Expenditure expenditure Expenditure expenditure

other than other than
depreciation depreciation

Ferro Alloys 739,501 109,677 –   17,369 54,299 –   

Wind Power –   10,165 –   –   10,164 –   

Total 739,501 119,842 – 17,369   64,463 –

2009-10 2008-09

Rs. (in '000)

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Note :
Segment have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17) taking into account the
organisation structure as well as the differential risks and returns of these segments.

11) As per As-15 “Employee Benefits”, the disclosures of Employee Benefits as defined in the Accounting Standard are given
below:

Defined Contribution Plan
The Company provides Provident Fund benefit to all employees.Under the scheme fixed contributions are paid to the regional
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Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Provident fund authorities. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay employee benefit. The Company has made the following contributions which are recognised
as expense in the profit and loss account for year in which the services are rendered by employees. 

2009-10 2008-09

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 1,215 1,123 

Rs. (in '000)

Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity:

2009-10 2008-09

I. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation
Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of the year 961 447
Acquisition Adjustment –   –   
Interest Cost 77 31
Past Service Cost –   –
Current Service Cost 385 355
Curtailment Cost –   –
Settlement Cost –   –
Benefit paid –   79
Actuarial gain/loss on obligation (42) 208
Defined Benefit obligation at year end 1,382 1120

II. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets N.A. N.A. 
III. Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligation N.A. N.A. 
IV. Expense recognised during the year

Current Service Cost 385 355
Past Service Cost –   –   
Interest Cost 77 31
Expected return on plan assets –   –   
Curtailment Cost –   –   
Settlement Cost –   –   
Actuarial (gain)/loss (42) 208
Net Cost 421 594

V. Investment details N.A. N.A. 
VI. Fair value of Plan Assets N.A. N.A. 
VII. Expected rate of return on Assets N.A. N.A. 
VIII. Actual return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A. 
IX. Actuarial assumption

Mortality Table (LICI) 1994-1996 1994-1996
Superannuation age 58 58
Early Retirement & Disablement 10 Per 10 Per

Thousand P.A Thousand P.A
6 above age 45 6 above age 45

3 between 3 between
29 and 45 29 and 45

1 below age 29 1 below age 29
Discount rate 8.00% 7.50%
Rate of escalation in inflation(per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
Return on Assets –  –   
Remaining Working Life 21 21 
Formula used Projected Unit Projected Unit

Credit Method Credit Method

Rs. (in '000)
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12 i) Related Partys’ Disclosure:
Related Parties :
A. Controlling Companies : Nil

B. Subsidiary Companies : 1. AXL Exploration (P) Ltd.
2. Anjaney Minerals Ltd.
3. Anjaney Alloys Ltd.

C. Associate Companies : 1. Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd.
2. Maithan Smelters Ltd.
3. Maithan Ceramic Ltd.
4. Maithan Ispat Ltd.

D. Fellow Companies : 1. Meghalaya Carbide & Chemicals (P) Ltd.

E. Key Management Personnel : 1. Shri Basant Kumar Agarwalla
2. Shri Subhas Chandra Agarwalla
3. Shri Subodh Agarwalla
4. Shri Aditya Agarwalla

F. Relatives of Key Management Personnel : 1. Shri Sudhanshu Agarwalla
2. Shri Kaushal Agarwalla

Details of Transactions with related parties during the period under audit are as follows :

Nature of Transactions Associates Subsidiary Fellow Key Management Relatives of Key
Personnel Management

Personnel

Sale of Goods 442,751 563 –   –   –
864,604 –   48,205 –   –   

Sale of Shares –   –   –   –   – 
125,737 –   –   –   –   

Purchase of Goods 84,548 –   –   –   –
295,835 –   6,703 –   –   

Purchase of Plant & Machinery –   –   2,206 –   –
–   –   –   –   –   

Receiving of Services –   –   –   27,000 4,800
–   –   –   17,629 4,800 

Rent Received 60 –   –   –   –
60 –   –   –   –   

Rent Paid 60 –   180 –   –
12 –   –   –   –   

Interest Paid 9,811 –   –   –   – 
–   –   –   –   –   

Rs. (in '000)

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation,promotion and other
relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

The expected rate of return on plan assets is not applicable as the scheme is unfunded.

2009-10 2008-09

X. Effects of changes in the assumed medical Cost N.A. N.A.
XI. Valuation record of the last 4 years N.A. N.A.
XII. Employer's best estimate N.A. N.A.

Rs. (in '000)
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Details of Transactions with related parties during the period under audit are as follows :

ii) Related party transaction:
1. Sale of goods & shares

Detail of sales to Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total sales to the related parties)

2. Purchase of Goods and Plant & Machinery 
Detail of purchase from Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total purchase from the related
parties)

3. Receiving of services
Detail of receiving of services from Key Management Personnel and their relatives which are material (more than 10%
of total receiving of services from the related parties)

Nature of Transactions Associates Subsidiary Fellow Key Management Relatives of Key
Personnel Management

Personnel

Commission Received 2,206 –   –   –   –
–   –   –   –   –   

Loan Received 100,000 –   –   –   – 
–   –   –   –   –   

Net Loans/ Advances Given –   480 –   –   –
–   2,909 –   –   –   

Investment/ Share Application –   (201,500) –   –   – 
Given/ (Refunded) –   232,000 –   –   –   

Rs. (in '000)

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

a. Sale of Goods
Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd. Associate 393,525 737,451 74,115 146,740
Maithan Ispat Ltd. Associate 44,326 30,534 3,742 22,312
Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 4,900 96,619 4,900 –   

b. Sale of Shares
Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate –   125,737 –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance (Dr.)

Rs. (in '000)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

a. Purchase of Goods
Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd. Associate 53,835 158,493 –   –   
Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 30,128 137,232 –   –   

b. Purchase of Plant & Machinery
Meghalaya Carbide & 
Chemicals (P) Ltd. Fellow 2,206 –   –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance (Dr.)

Rs. (in '000)

Name of the Party 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Directors' remuneration 27,000 17,629 6,219 –   
Executive's salary and others 4,800 4,800 –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance
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Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
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4. Rent received
Detail of rent received from Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total rent received from the
related parties)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 60 60 15 –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 9,811 –   8,830 –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

5. Rent paid
Detail of rent paid to Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total rent paid to the related parties)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Meghalaya Carbide & Chemicals (P) Ltd. Fellow 180 – –   –   
Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 60 12 –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

6. Interest paid
Detail of interest paid to Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total interest paid to the related
parties)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd. Associate 2,206 –   –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

7. Commission Received
Detail of commission received from Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total commission received
from the related parties)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 100,000 –   100,000 –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

8. Loans Received
Detail of loan received from Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total loan received from the
related parties)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

AXL Exploration (P) Ltd. Subsidiary 480 2,909 3,995 3,514 

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

9. Details of Loans/Advances given
Detail of loans/advances given to Subsidiary/Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total
loans/advances given to the related parties)
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As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. B. K. Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants Chairman 

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Managing Director
Membership No. F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Rajesh K. Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary

14 Deferred Taxation:

13 10% Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares have been redeemed as per the terms on 15 July 2008 at 50%
Premium.

Particulars Deferred Tax Current Year Deferred Tax
(Asset) / Liability Charge / (Credit) (Asset) / Liability

as on 01.04.2009 as on 31.03.2010

Difference between Book & Income Tax Depreciation 24,241 40,633 64,874 
Difference of Provision for Retirement Benefits (343) (143) (486)
Total 23,898 40,491 64,389 

Rs. (in '000)

Rs. (in '000)15 Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

16 Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever found necessary.

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

a) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 9,703,850 9,703,850 
b) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 9,703,850 9,703,850 
c) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 9,703,850 9,703,850 
d) Face Value of each Equity Share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 
e) Profit after Tax available for Equity Shareholders (Rs.) 302,391,088 369,743 
f) Basic Earning Per Share (Rs.) 31.16 0.04 
g) Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) 31.16 0.04 

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

10. Investment (including Share application Money) given/ (refunded) in Subsidiaries
Detail of investment (including Share application Money) given/ (refunded) in Subsidiaries which are material

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Anjaney Alloys Limited Subsidiaries (190,000) 200,000 10,000 200,000
Anjaney Minerals Limited Subsidiaries (11,500) 32,000 20,500 32,000

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

Schedule 23 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd...)



Information pursuant to the provisions of Part IV of the Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956

Public Issue

Bonus Issue

3 1 0 3

Registration No.

Balance Sheet Date

I. Registration Details

II. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities

III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

2 0 1 0

Date Month Year

Private Placement
(Including Shares Premium)

Paid-up Capital

Sources of Funds

Total Assets

Reserves & Surplus

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Item Code No. (ITC Code)

V. Generic Names of three Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

Net Fixed Assets Investments

Turnover & Other Incomes

Profit before Tax

Total Expenditure

Application of Funds

2 2 8 0 9 5 3

7 2 0 2 3 0 0 0

Item Code No. (ITC Code) 7 2 0 2 1 1 0 0

Item Code No. (ITC Code)

Product Description Wind Power

Product Description Ferro-Manganese containing by weight more than 2% of carbon

Product Description Ferro-Silico-Manganese

L27101WB1985PLC039503

9 7 0 7 0

4 9 3 1 5 9 0

4 3 9 5 1 3

4 4 9 2 0 7 7

Earning per Share (in Rs.) Dividend Rate3 1 . 1 6 1 0 %

1 1 5 8 7 6 8 5 0 9 9 4

Deferred Tax Assets N I L Net Current Assets 1 0 7 1 1 9 1

Misc. Expenditure N I L

N I L

Rights Issue N I L

State Code 2 1

N I L

N I L

2 2 8 0 9 5 3

1 0 7 4 9 1 0

Deferred Tax Liability Secured Loans6 4 3 8 9

Unsecured Loans 2 2 0 3 2 1

8 2 4 3 5 3

Profit after Tax 3 0 2 3 9 1

Balance Sheet Abstract
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To

The Board of Directors of

MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet

of MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED as at 31 March 2010 and

also the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the

Consolidated Cash Flow statement for the year ended on

that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are

the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

3. We have also audited the Financial Statements of the

subsidiaries M/s AXL Exploration Pvt. Ltd., M/s Anjaney

Alloys Ltd. and M/s Anjaney Minerals Ltd. whose financial

statements are considered in the consolidated financial

statements.

4. We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have

been prepared by the Company’s Management in

accordance with the requirement of Accounting Standard

(AS) 21, “Consolidated Financial Statements” and

Accounting Standard (AS) 23, “Accounting for Investment

in Associate in Consolidated Financial Statements” issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on

the basis of separate audited Financial Statements of

Maithan Alloys Ltd and its subsidiaries included in the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

5. On the basis of the information and explanations given to

us and on consideration of the separate audit report on

individual audited financial statements of Maithan Alloys

Ltd and its aforesaid subsidiaries, we are of the opinion that

the attached consolidated financial statements give a true

and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the

state of affairs of Maithan Alloys Ltd and its Subsidiaries

as at 31 March 2010;

b) in the case of Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of

the profit of Maithan Alloys Ltd and its Subsidiaries for

the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of Consolidated Cash Flow statement, of the

cash flows of Maithan Alloys Ltd. and its subsidiary for

the year ended on that date.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala

Place: Kalyaneshwari Partner

Dated: 21 June 2010 M. No- F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Consolidated Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2010

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. B. K. Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants Chairman 

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Managing Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Rajesh K. Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary

Rs. (in '000) 
Schedule As at As at

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders' Fund

Share Capital 1 97,070 97,070 

Share Application Money 215,000 – 

Reserves & Surplus 2 1,066,428 781,953 

Loan Funds

Secured Loans 3 824,353 1,424,258 

Unsecured Loans 4 306,926 45,318 

Minority Interest 2,000 2,000 

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 5 60,179 19,987 

2,571,956 2,370,586 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS 

Fixed Assets 6

Gross Block 1,710,078 1,046,469 

Less : Depreciation 428,672 308,657 

Net Block 1,281,406 737,812 

Capital work in progress 7 118,454 725,098 

1,399,860 1,462,910 

Current Assets, Loans & Advances 

Inventories 8 579,369 883,270 

Sundry Debtors 9 607,820 396,180 

Cash and Bank Balances 10 372,708 90,255 

Other Current Assets 11 121,905 100,584 

Loans & Advances 12 834,349 462,111 

2,516,151 1,932,400 

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions  13 1,345,565 1,025,174 

Net Current Assets 1,170,586 907,226 

Miscellaneous Expenditure 

(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Preliminary Expenses 360 450 

Deferred Revenue Expenses 1,150 – 

2,571,956 2,370,586 

Consolidated Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 22
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account For the year ended 31 March 2010

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account.

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. B. K. Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants Chairman 

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Managing Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Rajesh K. Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary

Rs. (in '000) 
Schedule Year ended Year ended

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

INCOME 
Sales (Gross) 14 4,976,695 6,615,631 
Less: Inter Unit Transfer 28,127 – 

4,948,568 6,615,631 
Less: Excise Duty 168,676 174,329 
Net Sales 4,779,892 6,441,302 
Export Incentive 32,866 75,532 
Other Income 15 119,637 20,386 
Increase/(Decrease) in Stock 16 (261,398) 184,857 

4,670,997 6,722,077 
EXPENDITURE 
Purchases 435,683 956,478 
Raw Materials Consumed 17 1,862,764 4,182,469 
Power & Fuel 18 1,278,295 805,304 
Manufacturing Expenses 19 126,916 95,118 
Administrative, Selling & Other Expenses 20 272,102 466,068 
Interest 21 136,839 142,640 
Depreciation  120,035 64,578 

4,232,635 6,712,655 
Profit before Tax 438,363 9,423 
Provision for Taxation : 

Current Tax 96,631 10,846 
Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit)  (Net) 40,193 (3,162)
Fringe Benefit Tax – 645 

Profit After Tax 301,538 1,093 
Add/(Less): Prior Period Item (12) – 
Add/(Less) : Taxation for earlier year (23) – 
Add: Balance brought forward from Previous year 654,455 701,927 
Amount available for Appropriation  955,959 703,020 
APPROPRIATIONS :
Transfer to General Reserve 20,000 – 
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve – 36,000 
Proposed Dividend :
- On Equity Shares 14,555 9,704 
- On Preference Shares – 1,036 
Tax on Dividend 2,474 1,825 
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 918,930 654,455 

955,959 703,020 
Earnings Per Share (Basic/Diluted) (Rs.) 31.07 0.01 
(Face Value Per Share Rs.10/-)
Consolidated Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 22
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 March 2010

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. B. K. Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants Chairman 

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Managing Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Rajesh K. Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary

Rs. (in '000) 
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax and extraordinary items 438,363 9,423 
Adjustments for : 
Depreciation 120,035 64,578 
Interest (Net of Receipt) 128,015 138,335 
Deferred Revenue Expenditure (1,150) –   
Irrecoverable Advances & Debts written off 35,961 –   
Prior Period Expenses (12) –   
Miscellaneous expenditure written off 90 –   
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Shares –   (11,282)
Loss / (Profit) on sale of fixed assets 16 153 
Operating profit before working capital changes 721,319 201,207 
Adjustment for : 
Trade and other receivables (644,101) (128,332)
Inventories 303,901 157,113 
Trade and other payables 315,894 133,673 
Cash generated from operations  697,013 363,661 
Interest Paid (Net of Receipt) (127,444) (139,713)
Direct Taxes Received/(Paid) (94,284) (184,083)
Cash flow before extraordinary items 475,284 39,865 
Extraordinary items – –
Net Cash From Operating Activities   (A) 475,284 39,865 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Fixed Assets (743,799) (257,980)
Sale of Fixed Assets 80,153 240 
Capital Work In Progress 606,644 (281,170)
Sale of Investments –   125,737 
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities  (B) (57,002) (413,173)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from Issue of Capital (Including Premium) 215,000 2,000 
Redemption of Preference Shares incl Premium –   (54,000)
Dividend Paid including Tax on Dividend (12,532) (26,847)
Proceeds / (Repayment) from / of borrowings (338,297) 482,001 
Net Cash from Financing Activities    (C) (135,829) 403,154 
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents  (A+B+C) 282,453 29,845 
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 90,255 60,410 
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 394,030 90,255 



Schedules to the Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2010

General Reserve
As per last Account 62,500 62,500 
Add:Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 20,000 – 

82,500 62,500 
Capital Reserve 
As per last Account 18,998 18,998 
Share Premium A/c 
As per last Account 10,000 28,000 
Less: Premium on Redemption of Preference Shares – 18,000 

10,000 10,000 
Capital Redemption Reserve 36,000 36,000 
Profit & Loss Account 918,930 654,455 

1,066,428 781,953 

A) Authorised Capital 
1,00,00,000 (PY 1,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 100,000 100,000 
5,00,000 (PY 5,00,000) 10% Cumulative Non-convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 50,000 50,000 

150,000 150,000 
B) Issued & Subscribed Capital

97,11,450 (PY 97,11,450) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 97,115 97,115 
Nil (PY 3,60,000) 10% Cumulative Non-convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each – 36,000 
Less: Redemption – 36,000 

–   – 
97,115 97,115 

C) Paid up Capital
97,03,850 (PY 97,03,850) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 97,039 97,039 
Add: Forfeited Shares (7600 Nos.)   31 31 

97,070 97,070 
Nil (PY 3,60,000) 10% Cumulative Non-convertible 
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each –   36,000 
Less: Redemption –   36,000 

–   – 
97,070 97,070 

Note : Out of above – 

17,91,450 (PY 17,91,450) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up issued for consideration other than cash in pursuance of

Scheme of Amalgamation.

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

Maithan Alloys Limited 65

Schedule 1 SHARE CAPITAL
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Schedules to the Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2010

Term-Loan 434,107 456,735 
Working Capital Loans
- Rupee Loan 197,409 521,583 
- Foreign Currency Loan 192,837 205,940 
Short-Term Loan:
Rupee Loan – 240,000 

824,353 1,424,258 

* Term loan from Banks are secured against Pari-Passu first charge on all tangible immovable and movable fixed assets of the
Company's units located at Kalyaneshwari and Meghalaya and further secured by second charge on the entire current assets of the
Company, ranking Pari-Passu among the lenders.

* Working capital loans  are secured against Hypothecation of Inventory, receivables and all other Current Assets, present and
future of the Company and further secured by second charge on the entire fixed assets of the Company, ranking Pari-Passu among
the Bankers.

* Short Term Rupee Loan is secured by mortgage of land of a subsidiary company.

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

Body Corporates 306,926 45,318 
306,926 45,318 

Deferred Tax Liability arising on a/c of Depreciation 64,875 24,154 
Less: Deferred Tax Asset arising on retirement benefits 486 343 
Deferred Tax Asset arising on account of Unabsorbed Business Loss (4,210) (3,824)
Net Liability/(Assets) 60,179 19,987 

As on Addition during Sale / As on Up to For the Adjustments Up to As on As on

01.04.2009 the year Adjustments 31.03.2010 01.04.2009 Year 31.03.2010 31.03.2010 31.03.2009

1 Goodwill on 

Consolidation 19,595 –   –   19,595 –   –   –   –   19,595 19,595

Land

2 Freehold Land & 

Development 14,262 – –   14,262 –   –   –   –   14,262 14,262

3 Leasehold Land & 

Development 244,262 1,461 80,148 165,575 –   –   –   –   165,575 244,262

Building

4 Non Factory 10,858 1,240 –   12,098 965 476 –   1,441 10,657 9,893

5 Factory 82,084 44,157 –   126,241 21,402 8,804 –   30,206 96,035 60,682

Plant & Machinery

6 Ferro Alloys Division 484,029 226,379 –   710,408 245,440 75,254 –   320,694 389,714 238,589

7 Mining Division 891 –   –   891 725 50 775 116 166

8 Power Plant Division –   463,934 –   463,934 – 23,879 23,879 440,055 –   

9 Windmill Division 176,916 – –   176,916 35,866 10,165 –   46,031 130,885 141,050

10 Vehicles 8,387 4,023 42 12,368 2,431 831 20 3,242 9,126 5,955

11 Furniture & Fixtures 1,606 1,430 –   3,036 548 159 –   707 2,329 1,058

12 Office Equipments 1,444 652 –   2,096 380 95 –   475 1,621 1,064

13 Computers 2,135 523 –   2,658 900 322 –   1,222 1,436 1,235

Total 1,046,469 743,799 80,190 1,710,078 308,657 120,035 20 428,672 1281,406 737,812

Previous Year 789,028 257,980 539 1,046,464 244,225 64,578 146 308,657 737,812 –

Sl. No. PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Schedule 3 SECURED LOAN  

Schedule 5 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/(ASSET) (NET) 

Schedule 6 FIXED ASSETS

Schedule 4 UNSECURED LOAN 
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Schedules to the Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2010

Kalyaneshwari 63,857 15,076 
Meghalaya –   707,431 
Achutapuram 54,597 2,579 
Maharashtra –   12 

118,454 725,098 

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

(as taken, valued & certified by the management)
Raw Materials 405,711 339,627 
Stock-in-Process 9,159 15,075 
Finished Goods 68,069 323,598 
Scrap and Slag 367 320 
Trading Stock 86,204 200,645 
Stores and Packing Materials (includes Stores in Transit Rs.Nil (PY Rs.186,000/-)) 9,859 4,005 

579,369 883,270 

(unsecured, considered good)
Exceeding six months  12,893 9,493 
Other Debts 594,927 386,687 

607,820 396,180 

Prepaid Expenses 5,603 12,563 
Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits 1,405 1,976 
Balances with Excise Authorities 53,221 86,045 
Subsidy Receivable 61,676 – 

121,905 100,584 

Cash in hand 2,292 2,260 
Balance with Scheduled Banks

in Fixed Deposit Accounts (in lien against margin money) 67,472 59,319 
in Current Accounts 238,252 15,689 

Debit Balance in Cash Credit Account 64,662 – 
Cheque/Draft in Hand 30 12,987 

372,708 90,255 

Schedule 7 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 

Schedule 8 INVENTORIES 

Schedule 9 SUNDRY DEBTORS 

Schedule 10 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Schedule 11 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 



Schedules to the Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2010

(Unsecured, considered good) 
Advances (recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received) 138,418 155,672 
Advances for Raw Materials, Stores & Capital Goods 497,343 107,046 
Security Deposits 7,029 8,464 
I.T. Refundable 94 91 
Advance Tax (Net of Provisions) 188,465 190,838 
Share Application Money 3,000 – 

834,349 462,111 

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

Schedules to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Ferro Alloys 4,490,694 5,599,181 
Scrap, Waste etc. 6,658 1,072 
Trading Sales 457,742 990,496 
Power 21,601 24,882 

4,976,695 6,615,631 

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors 

for Capital Goods 1,614 17,370 
for Raw Materials 878,616 818,485 
for Expenses 412,936 150,550 
for Others 30,956 23,322 

Unpaid Dividend 265 232 
1,324,387 1,009,959 

Provisions 
Provision for Leave Encashment/ Gratuity/ Bonus 4,149 2,650 
Proposed Dividend 14,555 10,740 
Tax on Dividend 2,474 1,825 

21,178 15,215 
1,345,565 1,025,174 
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Schedules to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Interest on Fixed deposit (Gross) (TDS Rs.11,98,190/- PY Rs.9,63,195/-) 8,824 4,305 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations (Net) 107,791 – 
Discount on DEPB Licence 680 4,727 
Profit on sale of Investment – 11,282 
Commission received (TDS - Rs.2,20,600/-, PY Nil) 2,000 – 
Other Receipts 342 72 

119,637 20,386 

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

Opening stock 505,585 450,468 
Add: Purchases 1,762,259 4,206,162 

2,267,844 4,656,630 
Less : Inter Unit Transfer 28,127 
Less : Closing stock 376,953 474,161 

1,862,764 4,182,469 

Electricity charges 932,877 774,773 
Electricity duty 36,701 30,531 
Power generation Cost 308,717 – 

1,278,295 805,304 

Closing Stock
Finished Goods 68,069 323,598 
Work-In-Progress 9,159 15,075 
Scrap and Slag 367 320 

77,595 338,993 
Less: Opening Stock
Finished Goods 323,598 139,322 
Work-In-Progress 15,075 14,063 
Scrap and Slag 320 751 

338,993 154,136 
Increase/(Decrease) in Stock (261,398) 184,857 

Stores & Packing Materials 68,169 58,716 
Carriage Inward 1,929 1,002 
Claims & Demurrage 40,214 25,448 
Repairs & Maintenance : 

to Machinery 10,942 2,508 
to Building 2,034 3,256 

Packing & Forwarding Expenses 5,265 4,188 
128,553 95,118 

Less: Amount Transferred to Capital Work in Progress expenses related to project under construction 1,637 – 
126,916 95,118 
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Schedule 15 OTHER INCOME  

Schedule 16 INCREASE (DECREASE) IN STOCK

Schedule 17 RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 

Schedule 18 POWER & FUEL 

Schedule 19 MANUFACTURING EXPENSES  
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Schedules to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Salary, Wages & Bonus 33,276 21,970 
Directors’ Remuneration 27,000 17,629 
Directors' Sitting Fees 95 45 
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 1,641 1,253 
Gratuity 621 594 
Lease Rent 1,218 – 
Workmen & Staff  Welfare 642 648 
Rent 804 53 
Rates & Taxes 6,604 496 
Professional Charges 5,076 4,870 
Insurance Premium 4,097 2,290 
Bank and other financial charges 14,646 52,299 
Auditor’s Remuneration :

As Audit Fees  340 198 
As Tax Audit Fees 25 25 
Certification & Other Services 36 34 
Reimbursement of Expenses – 19 

Repair & Maintenance 1,107 1,166 
Carriage Outward 35,474 11,648 
Rebate & Discount 11,544 9,232 
Irrecoverable advances & Debts written off 35,961 – 
Service tax (outward transportation) 725 – 
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 16 153 
Brokerage & Commission 13,408 6,225 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation – 182,016 
Export Expenses 55,255 121,454 
Donation – 3,811 
Preliminary & Share Issue Expenses Written Off  90 –
Miscellaneous Expenses 26,366 27,941 

276,067 466,068 
Less: Amount Transferred to Capital Work in Progress expenses related 
to project under construction 3,965 –   

272,102 466,068 

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Rs. (in '000) 

On Unsecured Loan 23,716 2,131 
On Fixed Loan 51,359 37,396 
Others 68,557 103,113 

143,632 142,640 
Less: Amount Transferred to Capital Work in Progress expenses related 
to project under construction 6,793 –   

136,839 142,640 

Schedule 20 ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING & OTHER EXPENSES 

Schedule 21 INTEREST



5) Expenditure exceeding 1% of revenue included in Miscellaneous Expenses: Nil

Maithan Alloys Limited 71

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

1) Significant Accounting Policies 
a) The Consolidated Financial Statement represents consolidation of financial statements of Maithan Alloys Limited (the

Parent Company) with its wholly owned subsidiaries, M/s AXL Exploration (P) Ltd. and M/s Anjaney Alloys Ltd. and partly
owned subsidiary M/s Anjaney Minerals Ltd.

b) Principles of Consolidation  
The consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 (AS-21) –
“Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

Investment in Subsidiary:
The Financial Statements of Maithan Alloys Ltd (“The Parent Company”) and its Subsidiary companies have been
combined on a line by line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, after fully eliminating intra company balances and transactions.

The excess of cost to the Parent company of its investment in the subsidiary over the Parent company’s portion of equity
of the Subsidiary is recognized in the Financial Statements as Goodwill.

The Financial Statements of the Subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that
of the Parent Company, i.e. year ended 31 March 2010.

The holding of the Parent Company in various subsidiaries are as under:

Investment in Associate:
In the case of associates, where the Company directly or indirectly holds more than 20% of equity, investments in
associates are accounted for using Equity Method in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 23 – “Accounting for
Investments in associates in consolidated financial statements”.

c) Other Significant Accounting Policies
The Significant Accounting Policies, which are generally uniform, are set out in the notes to the accounts in the financial
statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries.

2) Claims against the Parent Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of disputed excise duty and service tax demand –
Gross Rs. 23,078 thousand (Net of Tax Rs. 15,234 thousand) (Previous Year- Gross Rs. 3,871 thousand, Net of Taxes- Rs. 2,555
thousand)

3) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :
a) Bills Receivable discounted with Bank -

Inland Bills Rs.91,472 thousand (Previous year Rs.59,026 thousand)

Foreign Bills Nil (Previous year Nil )

b) Bank guarantee issued by Bank outstanding - Rs.17,277 thousand (Previous year Rs. 23,776 thousand)

c) Letters of Credit issued by Bank and outstanding -          
Inland LC Rs.49,230 thousand (Previous year Rs.100,370 thousand)

Foreign LC Rs.104,382 thousand (Previous year Rs.753,323 thousand)

4) Managerial Remuneration under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 :-

AXL Exploration (P) Ltd. Anjaney Alloys Ltd. Anjaney Minerals Ltd.

Maithan Alloys Ltd. 100% 100% 79.9995%

2009-10 2008-09

Directors' Remuneration 18,000 17,629 
Commission to Whole Time Directors 9,000 –

(Rs. in ‘000)

Schedule 22 CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
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Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

6) There are no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2010. This information as required to be disclosed under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

7) a) In compliance with the Accounting Standards – AS 22 relating to “Accounting for Taxes on Income” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Parent Company has provided for the net Deferred tax charge arising out
of timing difference of depreciation and retirement benefits amounting to Rs.40,491 thousand in the Profit and Loss
Account. (Previous year Deferred tax asset of Rs.3,002 thousand)

b) The Subsidiary Company has provided, for the net deferred tax asset arising out of Business Losses and timing differences
of Depreciation, in Profit and Loss account amounting to Rs. 298 thousand (Previous Year Rs. 160 thousand)

c)   Deferred Tax Liability(Net):

2009-10 2008-09

Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) 64,389 23,898
(Parent Company)   
Deferred tax liability/(Asset) (4,210) (3,911)
(Subsidiary Company)   

60,179 19,987

Rs. (in '000)

8) Segment Reporting
Primary Segment Information (Business Segments)

Particulars External Inter Segment Total External Inter Segment Total
Sales Sales Sales Sales

1. Segment Revenue
Ferro Alloys 4,758,291 –   4,758,291 6,416,420 –   6,416,420
Wind Power 21,601 –   21,601 24,882 –   24,882 
Mining –   
Total Revenue 4,779,892 –   4,779,892 6,441,302 –   6,441,302 

2. Segment Results
Ferro Alloys 557,651 –   557,651 122,661 –   122,661 
Wind Power 9,536 –   9,536 14,364 –   14,364 
Mining (864) (864) (469) (469)
Total Segment Results 566,323 566,323 136,556 136,556 
Unallocated Income 72 72 
Profit before interest & taxation 566,394 136,628 
Interest Paid (136,839) (142,641)
Interest Income 8,824 4,305 
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Shares –   11,282 
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets (16) (153)
Taxation for the year including 
adjustments of previous year (136,824) (8,329)
Profit after Taxation 301,538 1,093 

2009-10 2008-09

Rs. (in '000)

Schedule 22 CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd...)
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Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Other Information Rs.(in '000)

Particulars Segment Segment Segment Segment
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Ferro Alloys 3,776,451 1,345,295 3,210,758 1,022,982 
Wind Power 134,317 22 149,299 5 
Mining 5,244 248 5,404 3,538 
Segment Total 3,916,012 1,345,565 3,365,461 1,026,525

2009-10 2008-09

Particulars Capital Depreciation Non cash Capital Depreciation Non cash
Expenditure expenditure Expenditure expenditure

other than other than
depreciation depreciation

Ferro Alloys 743,799 109,788 –   17,369 54,299 –   

Wind Power –   10,165 –   –   10,164 –   

Mining –   83 –   –   115 –   

Total 743,799 120,035 –   17,369 64,578 –

2009-10 2008-09

Rs. (in '000)

Note :
Segment have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17) taking into account the
organisation structure as well as the differential risks and returns of these segments.

9 i) Related Partys’ Disclosure:
Related Parties :
A. Controlling Companies : Nil

B. Associate Companies : 1. Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd.
2. Maithan Smelters Ltd.
3. Maithan Ceramic Ltd.
4. Maithan Ispat Ltd.

C. Fellow Companies : 1. Meghalaya Carbide & Chemicals (P) Ltd.

D. Key Management Personnel : 1. Shri Basant Kumar Agarwalla
2. Shri Subhas Chandra Agarwalla
3. Shri Subodh Agarwalla
4. Shri Aditya Agarwalla

E. Relatives of Key Management Personnel : 1. Shri Sudhanshu Agarwalla
2. Shri Kaushal Agarwalla

Details of Transactions with related parties during the period under audit are as follows :

Nature of Transactions Associates Fellow Key Management Relatives of Key
Personnel Management

Personnel

Sale of Goods 442,751 –   –   –
864,604 48,205 –   –   

Sale of Shares –   –   –   –
125,737 –   –   –   

Purchase of Goods 84,548 –   –   –
295,835 6,703 –   –   

Rs. (in '000)

Schedule 22 CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd...)
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Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Details of Transactions with related parties during the period under audit are as follows :

Nature of Transactions Associates Fellow Key Management Relatives of Key
Personnel Management

Personnel

Purchase of Plant & Machinery –   2,206 –   –
–   –   –   –   

Receiving of Services –   –   27,000 4,800 
–   –   17,629 4,800 

Rent Received 60 –   –   –
60 –   –   –   

Rent Paid 60 180 –   –
12 –   –   –   

Interest Paid 9,811 –   –   –
–   –   –   –   

Commission Received 2,206 –   –   –
–   –   –   –   

Loan Received 100,000 –   –   –
–   –   –   –   

Rs. (in '000)

ii) Related party transaction:
1. Sale of goods & shares

Detail of sales to Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total sales to the related parties)

2. Purchase of Goods and Plant & Machinery 
Detail of purchase from Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total purchase from the related
parties)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

a. Sale of Goods
Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd. Associate 393,525 737,451 74,115 146,740 
Maithan Ispat Ltd. Associate 44,326 30,534 3,742 22,312 
Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 4,900 96,619 4,900 –   

b. Sale of Shares
Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate –   125,737 –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance (Dr.)

Rs. (in '000)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

a. Purchase of Goods
Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd. Associate 53,835 158,493 –   –   

Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 30,128 137,232 –   –   
b. Purchase of Plant & Machinery

Meghalaya Carbide & 
Chemicals (P) Ltd. Fellow 2,206 –   –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance (Dr.)

Rs. (in '000)

Schedule 22 CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd...)
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Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. Receiving of services
Detail of receiving of services from Key Management Personnel and their relatives which are material (more than 10%
of total receiving of services from the related parties)

Name of the Party 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Directors' remuneration 27,000 17,629 6,219 –   
Executive's salary and others 4,800 4,800 –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

4. Rent received
Detail of rent received from Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total rent received from the
related parties)

Rs. (in '000)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 60 60 15 –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 9,811 –   8,830 –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

5. Rent paid
Detail of rent paid to Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total rent paid to the related parties)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Meghalaya Carbide & Chemicals (P) Ltd. Fellow 180 –   –   –   
Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 60 12 –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

6. Interest paid
Detail of interest paid to Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total interest paid to the related
parties)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd. Associate 2206 –   –   –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

7. Commission Received
Detail of commission received from Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total commission received
from the related parties)

Name of the Party Relation 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Maithan Smelters Ltd. Associate 100,000 –   100,000 –   

Transaction value Outstanding balance

Rs. (in '000)

8. Loans Received
Detail of loan received from Fellow/Associate which are material (more than 10% of total loan received from the
related parties)

Schedule 22 CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd...)
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Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co. B. K. Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants Chairman 

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Managing Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Rajesh K. Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary

11 Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

12 Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever found necessary.

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

a) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 9,703,850 9,703,850 
b) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 9,703,850 9,703,850 
c) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 9,703,850 9,703,850 
d) Face Value of each Equity Share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 
e) Profit after Tax available for Equity Shareholders (Rs.) 301,538,291 57,655 
f) Basic Earning Per Share (Rs.) 31.07 0.01 
g) Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) 31.07 0.01 

10. 10% Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares have been redeemed as per the terms on 15 July 2008 at 50%
Premium.

Schedule 22 CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd...)
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Statement regarding Subsidiary Companies Pursuant to Section 212 of Companies Act, 1956

1. Name of the Subsidiary Company AXL Exploration (P) Ltd. Anjaney Alloys Limited Anjaney Minerals Limited

2. The Financial Year of the Subsidiary Year ended on Year ended on Year ended on

Company. 31 March 2010 31 March 2010 31 March 2010

3. Holding Company’s interest Entire Subscribed Entire Subscribed 7,99,995 Equity Shares of

Capital comprising of Capital comprising of Rs.10/- each out of the

23,500 Equity Shares 10,00,000 Equity Shares Subscribed and paid up

of Rs.100/- each. of Rs.10/- each. Capital of 10,00,000 Equity 

Shares of Rs.10/- each. 

4 Extent of holding 100% 100% 79.9995%

5 Net Profit/ (Loss) of the subsidiary (Rs. 5,70,502/-) (2,65,660/-) (27,333/-)

6 For the financial year of the Subsidiary

A] Profits/(Losses) so far as it

concerns the members of 

the holding company and 

not dealt with in the holding 

company’s accounts. (Rs. 5,70,502/-) (2,65,660/-) (21,866/-)

B] Profits/(Losses) so far as it 

concerns the members of 

the holding company and 

dealt with in the holding 

company’s accounts. Nil Nil Nil

7 For previous financial years since 

it become a subsidiary.

A] Profits/(Losses) so far as it 

concerns the members of 

the holding company and 

not dealt with in the holding 

company’s accounts. (Rs. 76,22,664/-) Nil Nil

B] Profits/(Losses) so far as it 

concerns the members of 

the holding company and 

dealt with in the holding 

company’s accounts. Nil Nil Nil

B. K. Agarwalla
Chairman 

S. C. Agarwalla 
Managing Director

Place: Kalyaneshwari Rajesh K. Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary
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Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the 10th Annual
Report together with the Audited Statement of Account of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Financial Results
(Rs. in lacs)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009

Net Sales NIL NIL
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation (7.82) (3.55)
Depreciation 0.83 1.15
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (8.64) (4.70)
Provision for Taxation (incd. Deff. Tax) (2.94) (1.60)
Add: Balance brought from Last Year (76.23) (73.07)
Balance Carried Forward (81.93) (76.23)

Operation 
The Company has made an application to the Government
Authorities for renewal of its mining lease and necessary
approval thereon is awaited. Company has not undertaken
activity pending renewal of mining lease. 

Dividend
Your Directors do not recommend any Dividend for the year
2009-10.

Directors
Shri S C Agarwalla, Director of the Company, will retire by
rotation from the Board of Directors of the Company at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer
himself for reappointment.

Public Deposit
The Company has not accepted any deposit during the year
2009-10, within the meaning of Section 58A of the Companies
Act, 1956.

Compliance Certificate
In accordance with Section 383A of the Companies Act, 1956
and Companies (Compliance Certificate) Rules, 2001, the
Company has obtained a certificate from a Secretary in whole
time practice confirming that the Company has complied with
all the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and a copy of
such certificate is annexed to this report.

Auditors’ Report
The observation made in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further
comments under Section 217(3) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Auditors
M/s. D K Chhajer & Co., Chartered Accountants, the auditors of
the Company will retire at the conclusion of the ensuring
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves

for re-appointment.

Personnel 
There are no employees who have received remuneration of
Rs.24,00,000/- or more per annum (if employed throughout
the year) or Rs.2,00,000/- per month (if employed for part of
the year).

Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption & Foreign
Exchange Earnings & Outgo
A statement containing the necessary information as required,
pursuant to Section 217 (1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956,
read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report
of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed hereto.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

i) that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the
financial year ended 31 March 2010, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

ii) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company
for the year under review;

iii) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) that the directors had prepared the accounts for the
financial year ended 31 March 2010 on a `going concern’
basis.

Acknowledgment 
Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of
appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from
all statutory bodies, banks and employees, during the year
under review.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Vishal Agarwalla S. C. Agarwalla
Director Director

Place : Kalyaneshwari
Date  : 15 June 2010

To
The Shareholders of
AXL Exploration Private Limited.
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Annexure to Directors’ Report 

Information as per Section 217(1)(e) read with Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988
and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2010.

I. Conservation of Energy 
Conservation of energy measures taken, additional investments and proposals (if any), impact of such measures, investments
and proposals and total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production: During the year company has
not consumed any Power and Fuel for its activities. Company’s operations are not energy intensive. 

II. Technology Absorption 
a) Efforts made in technology absorption are given below:

FORM B : FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO ABSORPTION

A. Research and Development (R & D):
1. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company : None
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D : Not applicable
3. Future plan of action  : None at present
4. Expenditure on R&D : NIL

B. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation :
Efforts, in brief, made towards technology, absorption, adaptation and innovation, Benefits derived, Technology imported:
The Company has not imported any Technology at present therefore we have nothing to report at present.

III. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

b) Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for products and
services and export plans: None at present 

c) Total foreign exchange used and earned: NIL (P.Y. NIL)

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Kalyaneshwari Vishal Agarwalla S. C. Agarwalla 
Date  : 15 June 2010 Director Director
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Registration No: 15 - 05643

The Members
AXL Exploration Private Limited
HIG - 17, BDA Colony, 
Jaidev Vihar,
Bhubaneswar – 751 013 

Dear Members,

We have examined the registers, records, books and papers of
AXL Exploration Private Limited (The Company) as required to
be maintained under the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and
the rules made there under and also the provisions contained
in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2010
(financial year). In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the examination carried out by us
and explanations furnished to us by the Company, its officers
and agents, we certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial
year:

1. The Company has kept and maintained all registers as
stated in Annexure `A’ to this certificate, as per the
provisions of the Act and the rules made there under and
all entries therein have been duly recorded. 

2. The Company has duly filed the Forms/Returns as stated in
Annexure `B’ to this certificate, with the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs within the time prescribed under the Act
or with the additional fee if filed beyond the prescribed
time and the rules made thereunder.

3. The Company being a private limited company has the
minimum prescribed paid-up capital and its maximum
number of members during the said financial year was 2
excluding its present and past employees and the Company
during the year under scrutiny.

i) has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or
debentures; and

ii) has not invited or accepted any deposits from persons
other than its members, directors or their relatives.

4. The Board of Directors duly met respectively on
02.06.2009, 30.07.2009, 26.10.2009 and 29.01.2010 in
respect of which meetings proper notices were given and
the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the
Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

5. The Company was not required to close its Register of
Members or Debenture holders during the financial year.

6. Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on
31.03.2009 has been held on 24.07.2009 after giving due
notice to the members of the Company and the resolutions
passed there at was duly recorded in the Minutes Book
maintained for the purpose.

7. No extra ordinary general meeting was held during the
financial year.

8. The Company, being a private limited company, the
provisions of section 295 of the Act are not applicable.

9. The Company has not entered into any contracts falling
within the purview of section 297 of the Act.

10. The Company was not required to make any entry in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act.

11. As there were no instances falling within the purview of
section 314 of the Act, the Company has not obtained any
approvals from the Board of directors, members or Central
Government.

12. The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificate
during the financial year.

13. i) There was no allotment / transfer or transmission of
securities, during the financial year.

ii) The Company has not deposited any amount in a
separate Bank Account as no dividend was declared
during the financial year.

iii) The Company was not required to post warrants to any
member of the Company as no dividend was declared
during the financial year.

iv) The Company was not required to transfer any amount
to Investor Education and Protection Fund as there was
no unpaid dividend, matured deposits, debentures or
accrued interest thereon, application money due for
refund which have remained unpaid or unclaimed for
seven years or more,

v) The Company has duly complied with the requirements
of section 217 of the Act.

14. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
and there was no appointment of additional director,
alternate director and director to fill casual vacancy during
the financial year.

15. The Company, being a private limited company, the
provisions of section 269 is not applicable.

16. The Company has not appointed any sole selling agents
during the financial year. 

17. The Company was not required to obtain any approvals of
the Central Government / Company Law Board / Regional

Compliance Certificate
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Director / Registrar and/or such authorities prescribed under
the various provisions of the Act during the financial year as
we were explained.

18. The directors have disclosed their interest in other
firms/companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the
provisions of the Act and the rules made there under.

19. The Company has not issued any share / debenture or other
securities during the financial year. 

20. The Company has not bought back any shares during the
financial year.

21. There was no redemption of preference shares or
debentures during the financial Year.

22. There was no transaction necessitating the Company to
keep in abeyance the rights to dividend, right shares and
bonus shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits
including any unsecured loans falling within the purview of
section 58A and 58AA read with companies (Acceptance of
Deposit) rules 1975, during the financial year. 

24. The Company, being a private limited company, the
provisions of section 293 (1) (d) of the Act are not
applicable. 

25. The Company, being a private limited company, the
provisions of section 372 A of the Act are not applicable.   

26. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to situation of the Company’s

registered office from one State to another during the year
under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to the objects of the Company
during the year under scrutiny.

28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to name of the Company
during the year under scrutiny.

29. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to share capital of the
Company during the year under scrutiny.

30. The Company has not altered its Articles of Association
during the financial year.

31. There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause
notices received by the Company and no fines or penalties
or any other punishment was imposed on the Company
during the financial year, for offences under the Act as we
were explained.

32. The Company has not received any money as security from
its employees during the financial year. 

33. The Company has not constituted a separate provident
fund trust for its employees or class of its employees as
contemplated under the section 418 of the Act,  

Place:  Kolkata (Sandip Kumar Kejriwal)
Date: 15 June 2010 C P No. 3821

Annexure A
Registers as maintained by the Company
Register of Member U/S 150

Register & Return U/S 163

Minutes Book

Books of Accounts U/S 209

Register of Directors U/S 303

Register of Directors’ Shareholding U/S 307

Register of Share Transfer 108.

Register of Charges U/S 143

Register of Contract U/S 301 read with 299

Annexure B

Forms/Returns filed by the Company

1) Form 20B alongwith Annual Return (U\S 159) for the AGM held on 24.07.2009 has been filed on 08.09.2009

2) Form 23AC & 23ACA alongwith sets of Balance Sheet (U\S 220) as on 31.03.2009 has been filed on 21.08.2009

3) Form 66 alongwith Compliance Certificate (U\S 383A) for the financial year ended on 31.03.2009 has been filed on 17.08.2009
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To
The Members of 
AXL EXPLORATION PRIVATE LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of AXL
EXPLORATION PRIVATE LIMITED as at 31 March 2010 and
also the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. 

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2003 (As amended) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Sub-Section (4A) of Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5
of the said Order. 

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in
paragraph (3) above, we report that:
a. We have obtained all the information and explanations,

which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of such books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Profit & Loss Account and the

Cash Flow Statement referred to in this report are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company. 

d. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit & Loss
Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report have been prepared in compliance with the
accounting standards referred to in Sub-section (3C) of
Section 211 of the Act, to the extent applicable. 

e. On the basis of written representation received from the
directors, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, in our opinion, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2010 from being
appointed as director under Section 274(1)(g) of the
Companies Act, 1956. 

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said
accounts read together with the notes thereon, give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the  accounting principles generally
accepted in India;

i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at  31 March 2010;

ii) in the Case of the Profit & Loss account, of the loss
for the year ended on that date and

iii) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala
Place: Kalyaneshwari Partner
Dated: 15 June 2010 M. No- F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Annexure to the Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date to the
members of AXL EXPLORATION PRIVATE LIMITED.

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of its Fixed Assets. 

b) These Fixed assets were physically verified by the
management during the year. We have been informed

that no material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification.

c) No fixed assets have been disposed off during the
year.

ii) a) The management has conducted physical verification
of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year.

b) The procedure of physical verification of inventory
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followed by the management is reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and
the nature of its business. 

c) The Company is maintaining proper records of
inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed
on physical verification.

iii) The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans,
secured or unsecured, to/ from companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956.  Consequently, clauses
(iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(f) and (iii)(g) of the Order are not
applicable. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are adequate internal
control procedures commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase
of fixed assets and for the sale of goods. During the
course of our audit, no major weakness has been noticed
in the internal controls in respect of these areas.

v) a) According to the information and explanations given
to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of
contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301
of the Act that need to be entered into the register
maintained under Section 301 have been so entered.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions made in
pursuance of such contracts or arrangements have
been made at prices which are reasonable having
regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant
time where such market prices are available.  

vi) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public during the year.

vii) The Company is not required to have an internal audit
system during the year under review.

viii) The Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records by the Company under
section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956.

ix) a) According to the information and explanations given
to us, there are no statutory dues in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service-tax, customs duty,
excise duty, cess and others outstanding as at 31
March 2010 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given
to us, there are no disputed statutory dues remaining
outstanding as at the year end.

x) The Company’s accumulated losses at the end of the

financial year are more than fifty percent of its net worth.
The Company has incurred cash loss in current year and in
the immediately preceding financial year.

xi) The Company has not obtained any loan/money from a
bank or financial institution or debenture holders and
hence the provisions of clause 4(xi) of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

xii) The Company has not granted any loans and advances on
the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities.

xiii) The Company is not a chit fund, nidhi or mutual benefit
fund/society. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xiii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company.

xiv) The Company is not dealing or trading in shares,
securities, debentures & other investments. Therefore, the
provisions of clause (xiv) of the order are not applicable to
the Company.

xv) The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken
by others from Bank or Financial Institutions.

xvi) The Company has not obtained any term loan during the
year under review.

xvii) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of the overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short term basis have been used for long term
investment.

xviii) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not made any allotment of shares
during the year and hence this clause is not applicable.

xix) The Company has not issued any secured debentures
during the year and hence the provisions of clause 4(xix)
of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xx) During the year covered by our Audit report, the Company
has not raised any money by public issues.

xxi) During the checks carried out by us, any fraud on or by
the Company has not been noticed or reported during the
year under report.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala
Place: Kalyaneshwari Partner
Dated: 15 June 2010 M. No- F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E
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Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2010

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Vishal Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

(Amount in Rs.) 
Schedule As at As at

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders' Fund

Share Capital 1 2,350,000 2,350,000 

Reserves & Surplus 2 11,050,000 11,050,000 

13,400,000 13,400,000 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS 

Fixed Assets 3

Gross Block 3,476,936 3,476,936 

Less : Depreciation 1,227,792 1,145,241 

Net Block 2,249,144 2,331,695 

Current Assets, Loans & Advances 

Inventories 4 2,448,491 2,448,491 

Cash and Bank Balances 5 347,036 429,048 

Loans & Advances 6 199,480 194,649

2,995,007 3,072,188 

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions  7 4,242,557 3,538,022 

Net Current Assets (1,247,550) (465,834)

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8 4,205,240 3,911,475 

Miscellaneous Expenditure 

(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Profit & Loss Account 8,193,166 7,622,664 

13,400,000 13,400,000 

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 10
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Profit and Loss Account For the year ended 31 March 2010

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Vishal Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

(Amount in Rs.) 
Schedule Year ended Year ended

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

INCOME – –   

– –   

EXPENDITURE 

Administrative & Other Expenses 9 781,715 355,133 

Depreciation  82,551 114,596 

864,266 469,729 

Profit/(loss) Before Taxation (864,266) (469,729)

Provision for Taxation:

- Current Tax – –   

- Deferred Tax (293,764) (159,661)

- Fringe Benefit Tax – 4,020 

Profit/(loss) after Taxation (570,502) (314,088)

Add/(Less) : Taxation for earlier year – (1,282)

Add: Balance Brought forward from previous year (7,622,664) (7,307,294)

Balance carried to Balance Sheet (8,193,166) (7,622,664)

Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) Rs. (24.28) (13.37)

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 10
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Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 March 2010

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Vishal Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

(Amount in Rs.) 
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax and extraordinary items (864,266) (469,729)

Adjusted for : 

Add :  Depreciation 82,551 114,596 

Operating profit before working capital changes (781,715) (355,133)

Adjusted for : 

Trade and other receivables (4,832) –   

Trade and other payables 704,535 561,050 

Cash generated from operations  (82,012) 205,917 

Direct Taxes Received/(Paid) – (3,554)

Net cash from operating activities   (A) (82,012) 202,363 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of fixed assets – –   

Net cash used in investing activities  (B) – –

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B) (82,012) 202,363 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 429,048 226,685 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 347,036 429,048
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2010

Securities Premium A/c
As per last A/c 11,050,000 11,050,000 

11,050,000 11,050,000 

A) Authorised Capital 
30,000 (30,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 3,000,000 3,000,000

3,000,000 3,000,000  
B) Issued, Subscribed & Paid up 

23,500 (23,500) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each, fully paid-up 2,350,000 2,350,000 
2,350,000 2,350,000 

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

(Amount in Rs.) 

Cash in hand (as certified by the Management)  126,429 248,394 
Balance with Scheduled Banks
- In Current Accounts  220,607 180,654 

347,036 429,048 

(Advances Recoverable in Cash or in kind or for value to be received) 
Advances  174,480 169,649 
Security Deposits 25,000 25,000 

199,480 194,649 

As on Addition/ As on Up to For the Up to As on As on
01.04.2009 (Adjustment) 31.03.2010 01.04.2009 Year 31.03.2010 31.03.2010 31.03.2009

during the
year

1 Land 2,021,201 –   2,021,201 –   –   –   2,021,201 2,021,201
2 Magazine 11,836 –   11,836 2,967 443 3,410 8,426 8,869
3 Vehicle 507,132 –   507,132 395,126 28,998 424,124 83,008 112,006
4 Dumper 891,267 –   891,267 725,114 49,846 774,960 116,307 166,153
5 Office Equipment 45,500 –   45,500 22,034 3,264 25,298 20,202 23,466

Total 3,476,936 –   3,476,936 1,145,241 82,551 1,227,792 2,249,144 2,331,695
Previous Year 3,476,936 –   3,476,936 1,030,645 114,596 1,145,241 2,331,695

Sl. No. PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Schedule 1 SHARE CAPITAL

(As Certified by Management)
Manganese Ores 2,448,491 2,448,491 

2,448,491 2,448,491 

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Schedule 4 INVENTORIES

Schedule 2 RESERVES & SURPLUS 

Schedule 3 FIXED ASSETS

Schedule 5 CASH & BANK BALANCES

Schedule 6 LOANS & ADVANCES
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2010

Deferred Tax Assets:
On account of Depreciation 87,025 87,643 
On account of Unabsorbed Business Loss 4,118,215 3,823,832 

4,205,240 3,911,475 

Current Account with Holding Company 3,994,768 3,514,412 
Other Liabilities 247,789 20,052 
Provision for Taxation – 3,558 

4,242,557 3,538,022 

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

(Amount in Rs.) 

Schedules to the Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Salary  220,837 208,127 
Employer’s Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 26,576 25,950 
Rent  24,000 18,000 
Travelling & Conveyance 12,853 10,788 
Bank Charges 403 1,998 
Auditor’s Remuneration: 

For Audit Fees   13,236  13,483 
Pollution control Expenses 75,000  –   
Vehicle Maintenance 20,208  22,807 
Miscellaneous Expenses  15,736  11,587 
Filing Fees 1,390  1,900 
Professional Charges 371,476  40,110 
Interest –   383 

781,715  355,133 

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

(Amount in Rs.) 

Schedule 7 CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS

Schedule 9 ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING & OTHER EXPENSES

Schedule 8 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
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Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2010

1) Significant Accounting Policies 
i) Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared to
comply, in all material respects, with accounting
standards as notified by Companies Accounting
Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956.

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The
accounting policies have been consistently followed by
the Company and are consistent with those used in the
previous year except where otherwise stated.

ii) Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. 

iii) Inventories
Inventories have been valued at Cost or Net Realisable
Value whichever is lower. 

iv) Depreciation 
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Written
down Value method in the manner and at the rates
specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

v) Taxation
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable
in respect of taxable income for the period based on
applicable tax rate and laws as per the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

vi) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be easily measured.

vii) Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a present
obligation as a result of past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate
can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

viii)Earnings Per Share (Basic & Diluted)
Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

ix) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flow is reported using the indirect method,
whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 

2. Related Party Disclosures pursuant to Accounting
Standard 18 issued by ICAI:

Related Parties:
A. Controlling Companies : NIL
B. Holding Company : Maithan Alloys Ltd.
C. Key Management : Shri Subhas Chandra 

Personnel Agarwalla
Shri Vishal Agarwalla

Details of Transactions with related parties during the
period under audit are as follows:

(Rs. in ’000)

Nature of Transactions Holding

Current Account with holding company 3995
(3514)

3. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped or rearranged
wherever considered necessary.

4. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. 

For D K Chhajer & Co. S. C. Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants Director

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala Vishal Agarwalla
Partner Director
M.No. F-057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari
Date: 15 June 2010

Schedule 10 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
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Additional information as required under Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile:

Public Issue

Bonus Issue

3 1 0 3

Registration No.

Balance Sheet Date

I. Registration Details

II. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities

III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

2 0 1 0

Date Month Year

Private Placement

Paid-up Capital

Sources of Funds

Total Assets

Reserves & Surplus

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Item Code No. (ITC Code)

V. Generic Names of three Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

Net Fixed Assets Investments

Turnover & Other Incomes

Profit before Tax

Total Expenditure

Application of Funds

1 3 4 0 0

9 8 0 1 0 0 X
Product Description Mining Project

U14292OR1999PTC005643

2 3 5 0

N I L

(8 6 4)

8 6 4

Earning per Share (in Rs.) Dividend Rate(2 4 . 2 8) N I L

2 2 4 9 N I L

Net Current Assets (1 2 4 7) Misc. Expenditure N I L

Accumulated Losses 8 1 9 3 Deferred Tax Assets 4 2 0 5

N I L

Rights Issue N I L

State Code 1 5

N I L

N I L

1 3 4 0 0

1 1 0 5 0

Secured Loans Unsecured LoansN I L N I L

Profit after Tax (5 7 1)
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting Second Annual
Report on the business and operations of the Company
together with the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31
March 2010.

Operations 
Your Company in in the process of setting up its Ferro Alloy
manufacturing unit in the State of Andhra Pradesh near
Visakhapatnam. The Company has already acquired the Land
for the project. Construction is going on in full swing at the
Project Site. The Company has placed orders for procurement
of Plant and Machinery. The negotiations are in advance stage
with various banks for financing the project.

Capital 
The Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital form
Rs.2,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crores only) to Rs.25,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Twenty Five Crores only). Further the Company
proposes to increase its paid-up share capital with a view to
augment the Long term financial resources, in near future.

Dividend
Since the Company is in the process of setting up its
manufacturing plant, your Directors do not recommend any
dividend.

Directors
Shri S C Agarwalla, Director of the Company, will retire by
rotation from the Board of Directors of the Company at the
2nd Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself
for reappointment.

Public Deposit
The Company has not accepted any deposit during the year
2009-10, within the meaning of Section 58A of the Companies
Act, 1956.

Compliance Certificate
In accordance with Section 383A of the Companies Act, 1956
and Companies (Compliance Certificate) Rules, 2001, the
Company has obtained a certificate from a Secretary in whole
time practice confirming that the Company has complied with
all the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and a copy of
such certificate is annexed to this report.

Auditors’ Report  
The Report of the Auditors read together with the Notes on
accounts are self explanatory and do not call for any further
comments under Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Auditors
M/s. D K Chhajer & Co., Chartered Accountants, the auditors of
the Company will retire at the conclusion of the ensuring
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves

for re-appointment.

Personnel
There are no employees who have received remuneration of
Rs.24,00,000.00 or more per annum (if employed throughout
the year) or Rs.2,00,000.00 per month (if employed for part of
the year).

Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption & Foreign
Exchange Earnings & Outgo
A statement containing the necessary information as required,
pursuant to Section 217 (1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956,
read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report
of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed hereto.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

i) that in the preparation of the accounts for the period
ended 31 March 2010, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

ii) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the accounting period and of the loss of the
Company for the accounting period under review;

iii) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) that the directors had prepared the accounts for the
accounting period ended 31 March, 2010 on a going
concern’ basis.

Acknowledgment 
Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of
appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from
all statutory bodies, banks and employees, during the year
under review.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

B. K. Agarwalla S. C. Agarwalla
Director Director

Place : Kalyaneshwari
Date :  15 June 2010

To
The Shareholders of
ANJANEY ALLOYS LIMITED.
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Information as per Section 217(1)(e) read with Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988
and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2010.

I. Conservation of Energy 
a) Conservation of energy measures taken, additional investments and proposals (if any), impact of such measures,

investments and proposals and total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production: There was no
consumption of Energy, Power and Fuel during the year ended 31 March 2010, since the Company is in process of setting
up its plant.

II. Technology Absorption 
a) Efforts made in technology absorption is given below:

FORM B : FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO ABSORPTION

A. Research and Development (R & D):
1. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company : None
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D : Not applicable
3. Future plan of action : None
4. Expenditure on R&D : Nil

B. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation :
Efforts, in brief, made towards technology, absorption, adaptation and innovation, Benefits derived, Technology imported:
Company has not imported any Technology at present therefore we have nothing to report at present.

III. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:
a) Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for products and

services and export plans: None at present

b) Total foreign exchange used and earned: NIL 

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Kalyaneshwari B. K. Agarwalla S. C. Agarwalla
Date  : 15 June 2010 Director Director
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Regn. No.: 21-129049

The Members
Anjaney Alloys Limited
3F, East India House, 
20, British Indian Street,
Kolkata - 700 069 

Dear Members,

We have examined the registers, records, books and papers of
Anjaney Alloys Limited  (the Company) as required to be
maintained under the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and the
rules made thereunder and also the provisions contained in the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company for
the financial year ended on 31 March 2010 (financial year.). In
our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the examination carried out by us and explanations
furnished to us by the Company, its officers and agents, we
certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial year:

1. The Company has kept and maintained all registers as
stated in Annexure `A’ to this certificate, as per the
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder and all
entries therein have been duly recorded. 

2. The Company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated
in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate with the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs within the time prescribed under the Act
or with the additional fee if filed beyond the prescribed
time and the rules made there under. 

3. The Company, being a limited company, comments are not
required.

4. The Board of Directors duly met respectively on
02.06.2009, 27.08.2009, 06.10.2009 and 29.01.2010 in
respect of which meetings proper notices were given and
the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the
Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

5. The Company has not closed its Register of Members or
Debenture holder during the financial year.

6. Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on
31.03.2009 has been held on 25.07.2009 after giving due
notice to the members of the Company and the resolutions
passed there at was duly recorded in the Minutes Book
maintained for the purpose.

7. One Extra Ordinary General Meetings were held during the
financial year, after giving due notice to the members of
the Company and the resolutions passed there at was duly
recorded in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

8. The Company has not advanced any loans to its directors or
persons or firms or companies referred to under section
295 of the Act.

9. The Company has not entered into any contracts falling

within the purview of section 297 of the Act.

10. The Company was not required to make any entry in the
register maintained U/S 301 of the Act.

11. As there were no instances falling within the purview of
section 314 of the Act, the Company has not obtained any
approvals from the Board of Directors, Members or Central
Government.

12. The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificate
during the financial year.

13. i) There was no allotment / transfer or transmission of
securities, during the financial year. 

ii) The Company was not required to deposit the dividend
money in separate bank account as no dividend was
declared during the financial year.

iii) The Company was not required to post warrants to any
member of the Company as no dividend was declared
during the financial year.

iv) The Company was not required to transfer any amount
to Investor Education and Protection Fund as there was
no unpaid dividend, matured deposits, debentures or
accrued interest thereon, application money due for
refund which have remained unpaid or unclaimed for
seven years or more.

v) The Company has duly complied with the requirements
of section 217 of the Act.

14. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
and there is no appointment of additional director,
alternate director and director to fill casual vacancy during
the financial year. 

15. The Company has not appointed any Managing Director /
Whole Time Director/ Manager during the financial year.

16. The Company has not appointed any sole selling agents
during the financial year. 

17. The Company was not required to obtain any approvals of
the Central Government / Company Law Board / Regional
Director / Registrar and/or such authorities prescribed under
the various provisions of the Act during the financial year as
we were explained.

18. The directors have disclosed their interest in other
firms/companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the
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provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

19. The Company has not issued any share / debenture or other
securities during the financial year. 

20. The Company has not bought back any shares during the
financial year.

21. There was no redemption of preference shares or
debentures during financial year.

22. There were no transactions necessitating the Company to
keep in abeyance the rights to dividend, right shares and
bonus shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits within
the provisions of sec. 58A and 58AA read with Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975.

24. The amount borrowed by the Company from directors /
members / public / financial institutions / bank and others
during the financial year is within the borrowing limits of
the Company and that necessary resolutions as per section
293(1) (d) of the Act have been passed in duly convened
Extra Ordinary General Meeting dated 14.01.2009.   

25. The Company has not made loans / advances or given
guarantees or provided securities to other bodies corporate
and consequently no entries have been made in the register
kept for the purpose.

26. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to situation of the Company’s
registered office from one State to another during the year

under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to the objects of the Company
during the year under scrutiny.

28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to name of the Company
during the year under scrutiny.

29. The Company has altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to share capital of the
Company during the year under scrutiny. 

30. The Company has not altered its Articles of Association
during the financial year. 

31. There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause
notices received by the Company and no fines or penalties
or any other punishment was imposed on the Company
during the financial year, for offences under the Act as we
were explained.

32. The Company has not received any money as security from
its employees during the financial year. 

33. The Company has not constituted a separate provident
fund trust for its employees or class of its employees as
contemplated under the section 418 of the Act. 

Place:  Kolkata Sandip Kumar Kejriwal
Date: 15 June 2010 C P No. 3821

Annexure A
Registers as maintained by the Company
1. Register of Member U/S 150

2. Index of members U/S  151 

3. Register & Return U/S 163

4. Minutes Book U/S 193

5. Books of Accounts U/S 209

6. Register of Directors U/S 303

7. Register of Directors’ Shareholding U/S 307

8. Register of Shares Transfer U/S 108

9. Register of Contracts under Sec. 301 read with Sec. 299

10. Register of Charges U/S 143

11. Register of Fixed Assets

Annexure B
Forms/Returns filed by the Company
1) Form 20B alongwith Annual Return (U\S 159) for the AGM

held on 25.07.2009 has been filed on 08.09.2009

2) Form 23AC & 23ACA alongwith sets of Balance Sheet (U\S
220) as on 31.03.2009 has been filed on 21.08.2009

3) Form 66 alongwith Compliance Certificate (U\S 383A) for
the financial year ended on 31.03.2009 has been filed on
17.08.2009

4) Form 17 (U/S 138) dated 02.06.2009 has been filed on
27.08.2009

5) Form 8 (U/S 125/127) dated 14.01.2009 has been filed on
17.04.2009

6) Form 23 (U/S 192) dated 23.02.2010 has been filed on
17.03.2010

7) Form 5 (U/S 94 (1) (a)) dated 23.02.2010 has been filed on
16.03.2010
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To
The Members of 
ANJANEY ALLOYS LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of ANJANEY

ALLOYS LIMITED as at 31 March 2010 and also the Profit

and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year

ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial

statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion.  

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,

2003 (As amended) issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of Sub-Section (4A) of Section 227 of the

Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5

of the said Order. 

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in

paragraph (3) above, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations,

which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were

necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by

law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears

from our examination of such books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Profit & Loss Account and the

Cash Flow Statement referred to in this report is in

agreement with the books of account of the Company. 

d. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit & Loss

Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this

report have been prepared in compliance with the

accounting standards referred to in Sub-section (3C) of

Section 211 of the Act, to the extent applicable. 

e. On the basis of written representation received from the

directors, and taken on record by the Board of

Directors, in our opinion, none of the directors is

disqualified as on 31 March 2010 from being

appointed as director under section 274(1)(g) of the

Companies Act, 1956. 

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us, the said

accounts read together with the notes thereon, give the

information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in

conformity with the  accounting principles generally

accepted in India;

i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2010; 

ii) in the case of the Profit & Loss account, of the loss

for the year ended on that date; and

iii) in the case of the Cash Flow statement, of the cash

flows for the year ended on that date.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala

Place: Kalyaneshwari Partner

Dated: 15 June 2010 M. No- F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E
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Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date to the

members of ANJANEY ALLOYS LIMITED.

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records

showing full particulars including quantitative details

and situation of its Fixed Assets.

b) These Fixed assets were physically verified by the

management during the year. We have been

informed that no material discrepancies were

noticed on such physical verification.

c) No fixed assets have been disposed off during the

period. However, out of 60.15 acres of Lease hold

land, Company has surrendered 20.15 acres of land

to Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure

Corporation Limited, and received back the amount

paid for the same.

ii) There being no inventory in the Company, this clause is

not applicable.

iii) The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans,

secured or unsecured, to/ from companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under Section

301 of the Companies Act, 1956.  Consequently, clauses

(iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(f) and (iii)(g) of the Order are not

applicable.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, there are adequate internal

control procedures commensurate with the size of the

Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase

of fixed assets and for the sale of goods.  During the

course of our audit, no major weakness has been noticed

in the internal controls in respect of these areas.

v) a) According to the information and explanations given

to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of

contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 301

of the Act that need to be entered into the register

maintained under Section 301 have been so entered.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, the transactions made in

pursuance of such contracts or arrangements have

been made at prices which are reasonable having

regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant

time where such market prices are available.  

vi) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the

public during the year.

vii) The Company is not required to have an internal audit

system during the year under review.

viii) The Central Government has not prescribed the

maintenance of cost records by the Company under

section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956.

ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given

to us, there are no statutory dues in respect of

provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income

tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service-tax, customs duty,

excise duty, cess and others  outstanding as at 31

March 2010 for a period of more than six months

from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given

to us, there are no disputed statutory dues

remaining outstanding as at the end of the period.

x) The Company does have accumulated losses at the end of

the financial year. The Company has incurred cash loss in

current period.
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xi) The Company has not obtained any loan/money from a

bank or financial institution or debenture holders and

hence the provisions of clause 4(xi) of the order are not

applicable to the Company.

xii) The Company has not granted any loans and advances on

the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,

debentures and other securities.

xiii) The Company is not a chit fund, nidhi or mutual benefit

fund/society. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xiii) of

the order are not applicable to the Company.

xiv) The Company is not dealing or trading in shares,

securities, debentures & other investments.  Therefore, the

provisions of clause (xiv) of the order are not applicable to

the Company.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to

us the Company has not given any guarantee for loans

taken by others from Banks or Financial Institutions.

xvi) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year

under review.

xvii) According to the information and explanations given to

us and on the basis of the overall examination of the

balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds

raised on short term basis have been used for long term

investment.

xviii) According to the information and explanations given to

us, the Company has not made allotment of shares during

the year to parties covered in the register maintained

under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

xix) The Company has not issued any secured debentures

during the year and hence the provisions of Clause 4(xix)

of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xx) During the period covered by our Audit report, the

Company has not raised any money by public issues.

xxi) During the checks carried out by us, any fraud on or by

the Company has not been noticed or reported during the

period under report.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Firm Registration No. 304138E

Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala

Place: Kalyaneshwari Partner

Dated: 15 June 2010 M. No- F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E
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The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala B. K. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari S. C. Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

(Amount in Rs.) 
Schedule As at As at

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders' Fund

Share Capital 1 10,000,000 10,000,000 

Share Application Money 205,000,000 190,000,000 

Loan Funds

Unsecured Loans 2 86,695,169 45,317,835 

301,695,169 245,317,835 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS:

Fixed Assets 3

Gross Block 164,761,242 240,611,000 

Less: Depreciation 110,772 –   

Net Block 164,650,470 240,611,000 

Capital Work-in-Progress 4 54,596,963 2,578,791

219,247,433 243,189,791

Current Assets, Loans & Advances

Cash & Bank Balances 5 40,135,321 500,841 

Loans & Advances 6 42,931,809 1,581,571 

83,067,130 2,082,412 

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions 7 2,219,285 179,268 

Net Current Assets 80,847,845 1,903,144 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4,311 –   

Miscellaneous Expenditure

(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Preliminary Expenses 179,920 224,900 

Deferred Revenue Expenses 1,150,000 –   

Profit & Loss  Account 265,660 –   

301,695,169 245,317,835 

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 9
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The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala B. K. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari S. C. Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

(Amount in Rs.) 
Schedule Year ended

31 March 2010

INCOME

Interest (Gross) 

(TDS: Rs.102,690) 758,525 

758,525 

EXPENDITURE

Administrative & Other Expenses 8 872,744 

Depreciation 110,772 

Preliminary Expenses written off 44,980 

1,028,496 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Taxation (269,971)

Less: Provision For Taxation:

- Current Tax –   

- Deferred Tax (4,311)

Profit / (Loss) After Taxation (265,660)

Add: Balance Brought Forward from previous year –   

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (265,660)

Earning per Share (Basic & Diluted) (0.27)

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 9
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As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala B. K. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari S. C. Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

(Amount in Rs.) 
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax and extraordinary items (269,971) –   

Adjustments for : 

Add :  Depreciation  110,772 –   

Deferred Revenue Expenses (1,150,000) –

Preliminary Expenses written off  44,980 –   

Operating profit before working capital changes (1,264,219) –   

Adjustment for : 

Trade and other receivables (41,350,238) (1,581,571)

Trade and other payables 2,040,017 179,268 

Cash generated from operations  (40,574,440) (1,402,303)

Net cash from operating activities   (A) (40,574,440) (1,402,303)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed Assets (4,298,149) (240,611,000)

Preliminary Expenses – (224,900)

Surrender of Leasehold Fixed Assets 80,147,907 –   

Pre-operative Expenses (52,018,172) (2,578,791)

Net cash from investing activities (B) 23,831,586 (243,414,691)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds/(Repayment)from/of borrowings 41,377,334 45,317,835 

Issue of Share Capital – 10,000,000 

Share Application Money 15,000,000 190,000,000 

Net cash from financing activities (C) 56,377,334 245,317,835 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 39,634,480 500,841 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 500,841 –   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 40,135,321 500,841 
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From Body Corporates 86,695,169 45,317,835 
86,695,169  45,317,835 

Authorised Capital:
2,50,00,000 (20,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each 250,000,000 20,000,000

250,000,000 20,000,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital
10,00,000 (10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up in cash 10,000,000  10,000,000 

10,000,000  10,000,000 

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

(Amount in Rs.) 

Building 17,814,534 –   
Plant & Machinery 21,807,853 –   
Pre-Operative Expenses
At the beginning of the year 2,578,791 –   
Add: Transfer during the year 12,395,785 2,578,791 

14,974,576  2,578,791 
54,596,963  2,578,791

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

As at Addition Sales / As at Depreciation As at As at
01.04.2009 Transfer 31.03.2010 for the Year 31.03.2010 31.03.2009 

Lease hold Land 240,611,000 – 80,147,907 160,463,093 – 160,463,093 240,611,000 
Plant & Machinery –   1,547,284 –   1,547,284 17,534 1,529,750 –   
Vehicle –   1,684,601 –   1,684,601 61,358 1,623,243 –   
Furniture & Fixture –   643,914 –   643,914 14,789 629,125 –   
Office Equipment –   147,700 –   147,700 2,950 144,750 –   
Computer –   274,650 –   274,650 14,141 260,509 –   

240,611,000 4,298,149 80,147,907 164,761,242 110,772 164,650,470 240,611,000 
Previous Year – 240,611,000 – 240,611,000 –   240,611,000 

PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK NET BLOCK

Cash-in-Hand (as certified by the management) 244,063 51,686 
Balance with Scheduled Banks: 

In Current Account 39,891,258 449,155 
40,135,321 500,841 

Schedule 1 SHARE CAPITAL

Schedule 4 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Schedule 2 UNSECURED LOAN

Schedule 3 FIXED ASSETS

Schedule 5 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
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Creditors for Capital Goods 1,160,408  –   
Creditors for Expenses 273,451  12,499 
Other Liabilities 785,426  166,769 

2,219,285  179,268 

(Unsecured, Considered Good) 
Advances (recoverable in cash or in kind or value to be received) 41,456,419 962,500 
Security Deposits 1,372,700 –   
TDS Receivable 102,690 –   
Prepaid Lease Rent –  619,071 

42,931,809  1,581,571 

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

(Amount in Rs.) 

Schedules to the Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 March 2010

Salary & Wages 822,353 
Staff Welfare 46,067 
Stores Consumed 1,636,921 
Repairs to Others 6,789 
Professional Charges 979,103 
Transportation Charges 375,507 
Interest 6,793,427 
Audit Fees 13,236 
Bank Charges 25,430 
Lease rent 619,071 
Rent 367,127 
Vehicle Running Expenses 99,495 
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,484,003 

13,268,529 
Less: Amount Transferred to Capital Work in Progress (Expenses related to project under construction) 12,395,785 

872,744 

Year ended
31 March 2010

(Amount in Rs.) 

Schedule 6 LOANS & ADVANCES

Schedule 8 ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER EXPENSES

Schedule 7 CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
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1) Significant Accounting Policies 
i) Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared to
comply, in all material respects, with accounting
standards as notified by Companies Accounting
Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956.

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The
accounting policies have been consistently followed by
the Company and are consistent with those used in the
previous year except where otherwise stated.

ii) Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. 

iii) Capital work-in-progress
Pre-operative expenses shall be apportioned to fixed
assets at the time of capitalisation.

iv) Depreciation 
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight
Line method in the manner and at the rates specified
in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

v) Preliminary Expenses
Preliminary Expenses will be written-off over a period
of 5 years. 

vi) Taxation
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable
in respect of taxable income for the period based on
applicable tax rate and laws as per the provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax assets and liability is calculated by
applying the tax act and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried
forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realised.

vii) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be easily measured.

viii) Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a present

obligation as a result of past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate
can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates

xi) Earnings Per Share (Basic & Diluted)
Basic earnings (loss) per share are calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

x) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flow is reported using the indirect method,
whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of none cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 

2) Pre-Operative Expenses
Pre-Operative expenses have been shown under capital
work in progress, pending allocation to fixed assets and
shall be apportioned proportionally at the time of
capitalisation to be considered after the start of commercial
operation.

Details of Pre-operative Expenses included in Capital work
in progress are as under:

Particulars 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Salaries & Wages 822,353 –
Stores Consumed 1,636,921 –   
Staff Welfare 46,067 –   
Generator Running Expenses 207,114 –   
Electricity Charges 177,423 –   
Transportation Charges 375,507 –
Rent 619,071 1,251,929 
Professional & Consultancy 
Charges 979,103 353,000 
Security Expenses 167,830 –   
Interest 6,793,427 410,959 
Travelling & Conveyance 
Expenses 134,889 155,146 
Vehicle Running Expenses 99,495 
Audit Fees – 12,000 
Bank Charges – 20,661 
Miscellaneous Expenses 336,585 375,096 

12,395,785 2,578,791

Schedule 9 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
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As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala B. K. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari S. C. Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

3) Miscellaneous Expenses Comprises of the following :

Particulars Amount (Rs.)

Telephone Expenses 39,080
General Expenses 108,004
Testing Charges 144,650
Office Maintenance Charges 19,600 
Hiring Charges 191,934
Advertisement 21,585
Rates & Taxes 14,750
Books & Periodical 3,926
Joining Expenses 49,445
Postage & Courier 8,424
Security Expenses 167,830
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 143,392
Filing Fee  3,240
Printing & Stationery 41,439
Stipend 142,207 
Generator Running Expenses 207,114
Electricity Charges 177,423

1,484,043 
Less: Sundry balances written back (40.00)

1,484,003 

4) Related Party Disclosures pursuant to Accounting
Standard 18 issued by ICAI:
Related Parties:
A. Controlling Companies

NIL

B. Holding Company
Maithan Alloys Ltd.

C. Associate Company
Meghalaya Carbide & Chemicals (P) Ltd
Maithan Smelters Ltd

D. Key Management Personnel
Shri Basant Kumar Agarwalla
Shri Subhas Chandra Agarwalla
Shri Vishal Agarwalla
Shri Sudhanshu Agarwalla

Details of Transactions with related parties during the
period under audit are as follows:

(Rs. in '000)

Nature of Transaction Holding Associate
Company Companies

2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Investment – 10,000 – –
Share Application 
Received (Refunded)
a) Maithan Alloys Ltd (190,000) 190,000 – –
b) Maithan Smelters Ltd – – 20,000 –
c) Meghalaya Carbide & 

Chemicals (P) Ltd – – 185,000 –
Purchase 563 – – –

5) The entire Paid-up capital of Rs.1,00,00,000 divided into
10,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up is
held by the Holding Company viz Maithan Alloys Limited.

6) Previous year figures have not been given for the profit and
Loss account as the same has not been drawn in the
previous year.

7) Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped/ re-arranged
wherever found necessary.

8) Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Schedule 9 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd...)
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Additional information as required under Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile:

Public Issue

Bonus Issue

3 1 0 3

Registration No.

Balance Sheet Date

I. Registration Details

II. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities

III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

2 0 1 0

Date Month Year

Private Placement

Paid-up Capital

Sources of Funds

Total Assets

Share Application money

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Item Code No. (ITC Code)

V. Generic Names of three Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

Net Fixed Assets Investments

Turnover & Other Incomes

Profit before Tax

Total Expenditure

Application of Funds

3 0 1 6 9 5

7 2 0 2 3 0 0 0
Product Description Ferro- Silico – Manganese

Item Code No. (ITC Code) 7 2 0 2 1 1 0 0
Product Description Ferro- Manganese containing by weight more than 2% of Carbon

U27106WB2008PLC129049

1 0 0 0 0

7 5 9

(2 7 0)

1 0 2 8

Earning per Share (in Rs.) Dividend Rate(0 . 2 7) N I L

2 1 9 2 4 7 N I L

Net Current Assets 8 0 8 4 8 Misc. Expenditure 1 3 3 0

Accumulated Losses 2 6 6 Deferred Tax Assets 4

N I L

Rights Issue N I L

State Code 2 1

N I L

N I L

3 0 1 6 9 5

2 0 5 0 0 0

Reserves & Surplus Secured LoansN I L

Unsecured Loans 8 6 6 9 5

N I L

Profit after Tax (2 6 6)
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting Second Annual
Report on the business and operations of the Company
together with the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31
March 2010.

Operations 
Your Company is exploring various opportunities for acquiring
mines. The negotiations are in process with various State
Governments, agents and/or brokers for acquiring mines in
India.

Dividend
Your Directors do not recommend any dividend.

Directors
Shri Aditya Agarwalla, Director of the Company will retire by
rotation from the Board of Directors of the Company at the
2nd Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself
for reappointment.

Public Deposit
The Company has not accepted any deposit during the year
2009-10, within the meaning of Section 58A of the Companies
Act, 1956.

Compliance Certificate
In accordance with Section 383A of the Companies Act, 1956
and Companies (Compliance Certificate) Rules, 2001, the
Company has obtained a certificate from a Secretary in whole
time practice confirming that the Company has complied with
all the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and a copy of
such certificate is annexed to this report.

Auditors’ Report  
The Report of the Auditors read together with the Notes on
accounts are self explanatory and do not call for any further
comments under Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

Auditors
M/s. D K Chhajer & Co., Chartered Accountants, the auditors of
the Company will retire at the conclusion of the ensuring
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

Personnel
There are no employees who have received remuneration of
Rs.24,00,000.00 or more per annum (if employed throughout
the year) or Rs.2,00,000.00 per month (if employed for part of
the year).

Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption & Foreign
Exchange Earnings & Outgo
A statement containing the necessary information as required,
pursuant to Section 217 (1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956,
read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report
of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed hereto.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

i) that in the preparation of the accounts for the period
ended 31 March 2010, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

ii) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the accounting period and of the loss of the
Company for the accounting period under review;

iii) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) that the directors had prepared the accounts for the
accounting period ended 31 March 2010 on a `going
concern’ basis.

Acknowledgment 
Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of
appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from
all statutory bodies, banks and employees, during the year
under review.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

S.C. Agarwalla Sudhanshu Agarwalla
Director Director

Place : Kalyaneshwari
Date :  15 June 2010

To
The Shareholders of
ANJANEY MINERALS LIMITED.
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Information as per Section 217(1)(e) read with Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988
and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2010.

I. Conservation of Energy 
Conservation of energy measures taken, additional investments and proposals (if any), impact of such measures, investments
and proposals and total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production: During the year Company has
not consume any power and Fuel for its actives. Company’s operations are not energy intensive.

II. Technology Absorption 
a) Efforts made in technology absorption are given below:

FORM B : FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO ABSORPTION

A. Research and Development (R & D):
1. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company : None
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D : Not Applicable
3. Future plan of action : None at present
4. Expenditure on R&D : Nil

B. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation :
Efforts, in brief, made towards technology, absorption, adaptation and innovation, Benefits derived, Technology imported:
Company has not imported any Technology at present therefore we have nothing to report at present.

III. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:
a) Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for products and

services and export plans: None at present 

b) Total foreign exchange used and earned: NIL

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Kalyaneshwari S. C. Agarwalla Sudhanshu Agarwalla
Date  : 15 June 2010 Director Director
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Regn. No.: 21-130114

The Members
Anjaney Minerals Limited
3F, East India House, 
20, British Indian Street,
Kolkata - 700 069 

Dear Members,

We have examined the registers, records, books and papers of
Anjaney Minerals Limited (the Company) as required to be
maintained under the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and the
rules made thereunder and also the provisions contained in the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company For
the year ended on 31.03.2010 (Financial Year). In our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the
examination carried out by us and explanations furnished to us
by the Company, its officers and agents, we certify that in
respect of the aforesaid financial year:

1. The Company has kept and maintained all registers as
stated in Annexure `A’ to this certificate, as per the
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder and all
entries therein have been duly recorded. 

2. The Company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated
in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate with the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs within the time prescribed under the Act
or with the additional fee if filed beyond the prescribed
time and the rules made there under. 

3. The Company, being a limited Company, comments are not
required.

4. The Board of Directors duly met respectively on
02.06.2009, 30.07.2009, 26.10.2009 and 29.01.2010 in
respect of which meetings proper notices were given and
the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the
Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

5. The Company has not closed its Register of Members or
Debenture holder during the financial year.

6. Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on
31.03.2009 has been held on 25.07.2009 after giving due
notice to the members of the Company and the resolutions
passed there at was duly recorded in the Minutes Book
maintained for the purpose.

7. No Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held during the
financial year,

8. The Company has not advanced any loans to its directors or
persons or firms or companies referred to under section
295 of the Act.

9. The Company has not entered into any contracts falling

within the purview of section 297 of the Act.

10. The Company was not required to make any entry in the
register maintained U/S 301 of the Act.

11. As there were no instances falling within the purview of
section 314 of the Act, the Company has not obtained any
approvals from the Board of directors, members or Central
Government.

12. The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificate
during the financial year.

13. i) There was no allotment / transfer or transmission of
securities, during the financial year. 

ii) The Company was not required to deposit the dividend
money in separate bank account as no dividend was
declared during the financial year.

iii) The Company was not required to post warrants to any
member of the Company as no dividend was declared
during the financial year.

iv) The Company was not required to transfer any amount
to Investor Education and Protection Fund as there was
no unpaid dividend, matured deposits, debentures or
accrued interest thereon, application money due for
refund which have remained unpaid or unclaimed for
seven years or more.

v) The Company has duly complied with the requirements
of section 217 of the Act.

14. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
and there is no appointment of additional director,
alternate director and director to fill casual vacancy during
the financial year. 

15. The Company has not appointed any Managing Director /
Whole Time Director/ Manager during the financial year. 

16. The Company has not appointed any sole selling agents
during the financial year. 

17. The Company was not required to obtain any approvals of
the Central Government / Company Law Board / Regional
Director / Registrar and/or such authorities prescribed under
the various provisions of the Act during the financial year as
we were explained.
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18. The directors have disclosed their interest in other
firms/companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

19. The Company has not issued any share / debenture or other
securities during the financial year. 

20. The Company has not bought back any shares during the
financial year.

21. There was no redemption of preference shares or
debentures during financial year.

22. There were no transactions necessitating the Company to
keep in abeyance the rights to dividend, right shares and
bonus shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits within
the provisions of sec. 58A and 58AA read with Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975.

24. The Company has not made any borrowing during the
financial year 

25. The Company has not made any loans / advances or given
guarantees or provided securities to other bodies corporate
and consequently no entries have been made in the register
kept for the purpose.

26. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to situation of the Company’s
registered office from one State to another during the year
under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to the objects of the Company
during the year under scrutiny.

28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to name of the Company
during the year under scrutiny.

29. The Company has not altered the provisions of the
Memorandum with respect to share capital of the
Company during the year under scrutiny. 

30. The Company has not altered its Articles of Association
during the financial year. 

31. There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause
notices received by the Company and no fines or penalties
or any other punishment was imposed on the Company
during the financial year, for offences under the Act as we
were explained.

32. The Company has not received any money as security from
its employees during the financial year. 

33. The Company has not constituted a separate provident
fund trust for its employees or class of its employees as
contemplated under the section 418 of the Act. 

Place:  Kolkata Sandip Kumar Kejriwal
Date: 15 June 2010 C P No. 3821

Annexure A
Registers as maintained by the Company
1. Register of Member U/S 150
2. Index of members U/S  151 
3. Register & Return U/S 163
4. Minutes Book U/S 193
5. Books of Accounts U/S 209
6. Register of Directors U/S 303
7. Register of Directors’ Shareholding U/S 307
8. Register of Shares Transfer U/S 108
9. Register of Contracts under Sec. 301 read with Sec. 299
10. Register of Charges U/S 143
11. Register of Fixed Assets

Annexure B
Forms/Returns filed by the Company
1) Form 20B alongwith Annual Return (U\S 159) for the AGM held on 25.07.2009 has been filed on 08.09.2009

2) Form 23AC & 23ACA alongwith sets of Balance Sheet (U\S 220) as on 31.03.2009 has been filed on 21.08.2009

3) Form 66 alongwith Compliance Certificate (U\S 383A) for the financial year ended on 31.03.2009 has been filed on 17.08.2009
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To
The Members of 
ANJANEY MINERALS LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of ANJANEY
MINERALS LIMITED as at 31 March 2010 and also the Profit
and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.  

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2003 (As amended) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Sub-Section (4A) of Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5
of the said Order. 

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in
paragraph (3) above, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations,
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of such books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Profit & Loss Account and the

Cash Flow Statement referred to in this report are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company.

d. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit & Loss
Account  and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this report have been prepared in compliance with the
accounting standards referred to in Sub-section (3C) of
Section 211 of the Act, to the extent applicable. 

e. On the basis of written representation received from the
directors, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, in our opinion, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2010 from being
appointed as director under section 274(1)(g) of the
Companies Act, 1956.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said
accounts read together with the notes thereon, give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the  accounting principles generally
accepted in India;

i) in the case of the the Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2010; 

ii) in the case of the Profit & Loss account, of the loss
for the year ended on that date; and

iii) in the case of the Cash Flow statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala

Place: Kalyaneshwari Partner

Dated: 15 June 2010 M. No- F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E
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Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date to the

members of ANJANEY MINERALS LIMITED.

i) The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans,

secured or unsecured, to/ from companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under Section

301 of the Companies Act, 1956.  Consequently, clauses

(iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(f) and (iii)(g) of the Order are not

applicable.

2) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, there are adequate internal

control procedures commensurate with the size of the

Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase

of fixed assets and for the sale of goods.  During the

course of our audit, no major weakness has been noticed

in the internal controls in respect of these areas.

3) a) According to the information and explanations given

to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of

contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301

of the Act that need to be entered into the register

maintained under Section 301 have been so entered.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, the transactions made in

pursuance of such contracts or arrangements have

been made at prices which are reasonable having

regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant

time where such market prices are available.  

4) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the

public during the period. 

5) The Company has incurred cash loss in the current period.

6) The Company has not obtained any loan/money from a

bank or financial institution or debenture holders and

hence the provisions of clause 4(xi) of the order are not

applicable to the Company. 

7) The Company has not granted any loans and advances on

the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,

debentures and other securities.

8) The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken

by others from Bank or Financial Institutions.

9) The Company has not obtained any term loan during the

period under review.

10) During the period covered by our Audit report, the

Company has not raised any money by public issues.

11) During the checks carried out by us, any fraud on or by

the Company has not been noticed or reported during the

period under report.

12) The other Clauses (i), (ii), (vii) to (x), (xii), (xiv), (xix), (xx) of

paragraph 4 of the aforesaid Order are not presently

applicable to the Company for the current year.  

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala

Place: Kalyaneshwari Partner

Dated: 15 June 2010 M. No- F057170

Firm Reg. No. 304138E



Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2010

112 Annual Report 2009-10

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Sudhanshu Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

(Amount in Rs.) 
Schedule As at As at

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders' Fund

Share Capital 1 10,000,000 10,000,000 

Share Application Money 22,500,000  24,000,000 

Total 32,500,000  34,000,000 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS:

Capital Work-in-Progress 2 –   11,678 

Current Assets, Loans & Advances

Cash & Bank Balances 3 198,060 1,670,558 

Loans & Advances 4 32,109,520  32,107,747 

32,307,580 33,778,305 

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions 5 14,633 14,633 

Net Current Assets 32,292,947  33,763,672 

Miscellaneous Expenditure 

(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Preliminary Expenses 179,720  224,650 

Profit & Loss Account 27,333  –   

Total 32,500,000  34,000,000 

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 6
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The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.

As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Sudhanshu Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

(Amount in Rs.) 
Schedule Year ended

31 March 2010

INCOME

Interest on Fixed Deposits (TDS - Rs. 9,520) 46,181 

Total 46,181 

EXPENDITURE

Audit Fees 13,236 

Bank Charges 550 

Filling Fees 1,620 

Professional Charges 1,500 

Preliminary Expenses written off 44,930 

Total 61,836 

Loss for the year 15,655 

Add: Prior Period Item 11,678 

Loss carried to Balance Sheet 27,333 

Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) (0.03)

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 6
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As per our report of even date

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Sudhanshu Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

(Amount in Rs.) 
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax and extraordinary items (27,333) –   

Adjusted for :

Prior Period Item 11,678 –

Preliminary Expenses written off 44,930 –   

Operating profit before working capital changes 29,275 –   

Adjusted for :

Trade and other receivables (1,773) (32,107,747)

Cash generated from operations  27,502 (32,107,747)

Direct Taxes Received/(Paid) – –   

Net cash from operating activities   (A) 27,502 (32,107,747)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Preliminary Expenses – (224,650)

Pre-operative Expenses – (11,678)

Net cash from investing activities (B) – (236,328)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Issue of Share Capital – 10,000,000 

Share Application Money (1,500,000) 24,000,000 

Net cash from financing activities (C) (1,500,000) 34,000,000 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,472,498) 1,655,925 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,670,558 –   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 198,060 1,670,558 
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A) Authorised Capital 
2,000,000 (2,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each 20,000,000 20,000,000

20,000,000 20,000,000
B) Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Capital

1,000,000 (1,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up in cash. 10,000,000 10,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000

As at As at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

(Amount in Rs.) 

Pre-Operative Expenses
Opening balance 11,678 –   
Filling Fees –  2,179 
General expenses –   1,510 
Printing & Stationery – 353 
Bank Charges – 750 
Provision for Taxation – 2,633 
Audit Fees – 12,000 

11,678  19,425 
Less: Interest on Fixed Deposit – 7,747 

11,678  11,678 
Less: Transferred to Profit & Loss A/c 11,678  –   

– 11,678 

Cash-in-Hand (as certified by the management) 107,021  108,641 
Balance with Scheduled Banks: 

In Current Account 91,039  61,917 
In Fixed Deposit Account –  1,500,000 

198,060 1,670,558 

(Unsecured, Considered Good) 
Advances (recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received) 32,100,000 32,100,000 
Accrued Interest on FD – 7,747 
TDS Receivable 9,520 –   

32,109,520  32,107,747 

Current Liabilities 
Liability for expenses 12,000 12,000 
Provisions
Provision for Tax 2,633 2,633 

14,633 14,633 

Schedule 1 SHARE CAPITAL

Schedule 2 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Schedule 3 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Schedule 4 LOANS & ADVANCES

Schedule 5 CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
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1) Significant Accounting Policies 
i) Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared to
comply, in all material respects, with accounting
standards as notified by Companies Accounting
Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956.

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost convention on accrual basis. The
accounting policies have been consistently followed
by the Company and are consistent with those used in
the previous year except where otherwise stated.

ii) Preliminary Expenses
Preliminary and Share Issue Expenditure is amortised
over a period of five years. 

iii) Taxation
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax
payable in respect of taxable income for the period
based on applicable tax rate and laws as per the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

iv) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be easily measured.

v) Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a present
obligation as a result of past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate
can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates

vi) Earnings Per Share (Basic & Diluted)
Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

vii) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flow is reported using the indirect method,
whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of none cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 

2) Out of total paid-up share capital of Rs.1,00,00,000
divided into 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each fully
paid-up, 7,99,995 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-
up are held by the holding company viz Maithan Alloys
Limited.

3) Related Party Disclosures pursuant to Accounting
Standard 18 issued by ICAI:
Related Parties:
A. Controlling Companies : NIL

B. Holding Company : Maithan Alloys Ltd.

C. Associates : Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd.

D. Fellow Company : Meghalaya Carbide & 
Chemicals P Ltd.

E. Key Management : Shri Subhas Chandra 
Personnel Agarwalla

Shri Aditya Agarwalla

Shri Sudhanshu Agarwalla

Details of Transactions with related parties during the
period under audit are as follows:

(Rs. in ’000)
Nature of Transactions Holding Fellow

Share Application Money (received) – 10000
Share Application Money (Refunded) 11500 –

4) Previous year figures have been rearranged and regrouped
wherever considered necessary, however in case of profit
& loss account previous year figures need not be given as
the same has not been prepared.

5) Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. 

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Niraj K. Jhunjhunwala S. C. Agarwalla 
Partner Director
Membership No. F057170
Firm Reg. No. 304138E

Place: Kalyaneshwari Sudhanshu Agarwalla
Date : 15 June 2010 Director

Schedule 6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
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Additional information as required under Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile:

Public Issue

Bonus Issue

3 1 0 3

Registration No.

Balance Sheet Date

I. Registration Details

II. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities

III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

2 0 1 0

Date Month Year

Private Placement

Paid-up Capital

Sources of Funds

Total Assets

Reserves & Surplus

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Item Code No. (ITC Code)

V. Generic Names of three Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

Net Fixed Assets Investments

Turnover & Other Incomes

Profit before Tax

Total Expenditure

Application of Funds

3 2 5 0 0

9 8 0 1 0 0 X
Product Description Mining Project

U13100WB2008PLC130114

1 0 0 0 0

4 6

(1 6)

6 2

Earning per Share (in Rs.) Dividend Rate(0 . 0 3) N I L

N I L N I L

Net Current Assets 9 7 9 3 Misc. Expenditure 1 8 0

Accumulated Losses 2 7 Deferred Tax Assets N I L

N I L

Rights Issue N I L

State Code 2 1

N I L

N I L

3 2 5 0 0

N I L

Secured Loans Unsecured LoansN I L N I L

Profit after Tax (1 6)



Notice

118 Annual Report 2009-10

Notice is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Wednesday, the 18 August, 2010
at 11:00 a.m. at The Conclave, 216 A J C Bose Road, Kolkata – 700 017 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2010, the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended
on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Sri Shrigopal Jhunjhunwala, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment. 

4. To appoint a Director in place of Sri Vikash Kumar Jewrajka, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

5. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

Registered Office : By Order of the Board
3F, East India House, For Maithan Alloys Limited
20, British Indian Street,
Kolkata – 700 069 Rajesh K Shah
Date : 21 June 2010 Company Secretary

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and on a poll,
vote instead of himself/herself and the Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy(ies),
in order to be effective, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the
time fixed for the commencement of the meeting.

2. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 14 August 2010 to 18 August
2010 (both days inclusive). 

3. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report of the Company at the Meeting. As a measure of economy
copies of Annual Report will not be distributed at the venue of the meeting.

4. Members seeking any information or clarification on the accounts are requested to send their queries in writing to the
Company, at least one week before the date of the meeting, to enable us to keep the information(s) ready. 

5. The dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010 as recommended by the Board, if approved at the Annual General Meeting,
will be paid to those members whose names will appear in the Company’s Register of Members as on 18 August 2010 after
giving effect to all the valid transfers received upto the close of business hours on 13 August 2010. In respect of shares held
in electronic form, the dividend will be paid on the basis of details of beneficial ownership position provided as at the close of
business hours on 13 August 2010 by National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

6. Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars registered against their respective depository
accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request
received directly from the members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates.
Such changes are to be advised only to Depository Participant of the members.

Notes
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7. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in their address or bank mandate
to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical
form are requested to advise any change of address immediately to the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s.
Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.

8. Members, holding shares in the same name or in the same order of names but in several folios are requested to consolidate
them into one folio. 

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 the amount of dividend remaining
unclaimed and unpaid for a period of seven years from the date lying in the unpaid dividend account, is required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Accordingly, till date the Company has transferred the unpaid
and unclaimed amount pertaining to the dividend for the financial year 2001-2002 to the IEPF. Members who have not yet
en-cashed their dividend warrants for the financial year 2002-2003 onwards are requested to make their claims to the
Company immediately. Members may please note that no claim shall lie either against the IEPF or the Company in respect of
dividend which remains unclaimed and unpaid for a period of Seven years from the date it is lying in the unpaid dividend
account and no payment shall be made in respect of such claim.

10. A brief profile of the Directors who are being proposed to be appointed/re-appointed, as required by Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, is given below

Name of Director Sri Shrigopal Jhunjhunwala Sri Vikash Kumar Jewrajka

Date of Birth 30 April 1943 12 November 1974

Qualification M.COM, LLB B.Com., FCA

Experience 45 years 11 years

Date of Appointment 17 August 2001 23 July 2008

Nature of expertise in specific Expertise in the field of Iron and Experience in the field
functional areas steel industry of refractory & steel industry.

Name(s) of other companies in 
which directorships held
(as per Section 275 and 278 of 
the Companies Act, 1956) None None

Number of shares of Rs. 10/- each 
held by the Director or his relatives 7522 276

Number of ESOPs granted Nil Nil

Relationship between Directors
interse (as per section 6 read 
with schedule IA of the 
Companies Act, 1956) None None
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Chairman & Whole Time Director 
Sri B. K. Agarwalla 

Managing Director 
Sri S. C. Agarwalla

Wholetime Directors
Sri Subodh Agarwalla 

Sri Aditya Agarwalla

Directors 
Sri Makhan Lal Satnaliwala

Sri Shrigopal Jhunjhunwala

Sri Raj Kumar Agarwal

Sri Nand Kishore Agarwal

Sri Vikash Kumar Jewrajka

Sri Biswajit Choudhuri

Company Secretary 
Sri Rajesh K. Shah

Auditors
D. K. Chhajer & Co. 

Chartered Accountants

Registered office 
3F, East India House

20, British Indian Street, Kolkata – 700 069

Works
Kalyaneshwari (West Bengal)

Ri-Bhoi (Meghalaya)

Jaisalmer (Rajasthan)

Sangli (Maharashtra)

Banks and financial institutions
State Bank of India 

Punjab National Bank

IndusInd Bank

Citibank N.A.

Axis Bank Limited

Corporate information



In our report we have disclosed forward-looking information so that investors can comprehend the

Company’s prospects and make informed investment decisions. This annual report and other written and

oral statements that we make periodically contain such forward-looking statements that set out

anticipated results based on the Management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried, wherever possible,

to qualify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’,

‘plans’, ‘believes’, and words and terms of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future

operating or financial performance.

We do not guarantee that any forward-looking statement will be realised, although we believe we have

been diligent and prudent in our plans and assumptions. The achievement of future results is subject to

risks, uncertainties and validity of inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or

uncertainties materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, our actual results could vary

materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Investors should bear this in mind as they

consider forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking

statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.  
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